

### Nurses 2020 - 2021 SY

Negotiated Agreement

#### **Table of Contents**

Association	4
Information	4
Special Services Professionals, Memorandum of Understanding	5
Communications/Transparency in Negotiations, Memorandum of Understanding	5
Negotiated Nurse Rights, Policy 4734	6
Negotiated Policy, Policy 4735	14
Nurse Grievance Procedures, Policy 4736	25
GRIEVANCE FORM, Administrative Procedure 4736.1	30
Employment	31
Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action, Policy 4001	31
Responsibilities for Licensed and Classified Personnel, Policy 4001.1	31
Definition of Licensed Personnel, Policy 4008	31
Definition of School Nurse, Policy 4708	32
Employment, Policy 4015	32
Nurse Employment, Policy 4710	32
21st Century Partnership, Memorandum of Understanding	33
Nurses' Pilot Model for Short-Term Assignments, Memorandum of Understanding	34
Transfer, Policy 4715	37
Nurse Transfer Procedure, Administrative Procedure 4715.1	38
Reduction of Nurses, Policy 4760	39
Nurse Work Year and Working Hours and Working Schedule, Policy 4716	40
School Closure, Policy 4716.1	43
Role of Nurse, Policy 4717	
Resignation/Retirement, Policy 4719	44
Substitute Nurses, Policy 4722	44
Student Nurses, Policy 4723	44
School Nurse Evaluation Procedure, Policy 4737	45
Appraisal Procedures, Administrative Procedure 4737.1	51
Nurse Evaluation: Memorandum of Understanding	51
Site-Based Management Model, Memorandum of Understanding	52
Compensation, Benefit, and Leave	
Nurses Salary Schedule, Policy 4741	54
2020-2021 New Hires, Memorandum of Understanding	56
2020-2021 Teacher Compensation, Memorandum of Understanding	58
Substitute Nurses Compensation, Administrative Procedure 4722.1	60
Professional Growth, Policy 4730	60
Professional Growth Procedures, Policy 4730.1	60
Professional Growth Application, Administrative Procedure 4730.2	62
Travel Reimbursement, Policy 4010	63
Insurance Preamble, Memorandum of Understanding	64
Insurance, Policy 4044	
Coordination and Collection of Insurance Premiums, Policy 4044.1	65
Insurance Benefits, Policy 4744	
Insurance Committee, Memorandum of Understanding	
Workers' Compensation, Policy 4012	68

Cherry Creek School District no. 5, Greenwood Village, CO 80111

Workers' Compensation Claims Procedures, Policy 4012.1	69
First Report of Injury, Administrative Procedure 4012.2	73
Temporary Paid Leaves of Absence, Policy 4751	
Temporary Paid Leaves of Absences, Memorandum of Understanding	79
Accumulated Sick Leave Compensation Application, Administrative Procedure 4751.2	
Military Leave, Jury Duty Leave, Subpoenaed Witness, Policy 4051	
Non-Paid Extended Leaves of Absence, Policy 4753	
General	
Employee - Board of Education Relationships, Policy 4002	
Publication of Articles, Policy 4003	
Political Activities, Policy 4006	
Organizational Membership, Policy 4013	
Athletic Attendance, Policy 4043	
Physical and Mental Examinations and Alcohol and Controlled Substance Testing, Policy 4047	
Communicable or Life-Threatening Diseases, Administrative Procedure 4047.2	
Drug-Free Workplace, Policy 4048	
Collaboration and Conflict Resolution to Prevent Workplace Bullying, Policy 4138	
Attendance of Children, Policy 4743	
COVID-19 Related Matters and Working Conditions for the 2020-2021 School Year	
Teachers, Nurses, Mental Health 2020-2021 Furlough Days	100

# Association Information

#### Special Services Professionals, Memorandum of Understanding

Cherry Creek School District (CCSD) and the Cherry Creek Education Association (CCEA) will create a committee at the beginning of the 2019-2020 school year to address alignment of policy and practice for Special Service Professionals (also referred to as Special Service Providers per Colorado Department of Education).

The Special Service Professionals (SSPs) committee will determine the discrepancies and similarities in current policy language as it pertains to Mental Health employees, Nurses, and all other SSPs as defined by CDE. The committee will explore other districts' policy language governing SSPs as well as CDE guidelines for SSPs (e.g. evaluations). The committee will explore ways to align policy language and create a thoughtful and sincere proposal considering all options.

The committee will be comprised of no more than twenty (20) members. The committee will be co-chaired by a CCSD Bargaining Committee member and a CCEA Bargaining Committee member. The District will appoint up to ten (10) members, and CCEA will appoint up to ten (10) members who represent the nine (9) CDE-designated SSP categories.

The committee will continue meeting no later than September 2020. Representatives are expected to provide monthly updates to the Bargaining Committee.

Revised: May 5, 2020 Adopted: July 20, 2020 Effective: July 1, 2020

#### Communications/Transparency in Negotiations, Memorandum of Understanding

The District and the Association share an interest in ensuring that all District teachers, nurses, mental health employees, administrators, and members of the school board (collectively, "stakeholders") receive pertinent and accurate information regarding items for negotiations. The parties agree that easy access to such information will best serve this important interest.

Therefore, the parties agree to this Memorandum to further clarify information in Policies 4135, 4735, and 4879 regarding communications about negotiations. Specifically, the parties agree that transparency in communications is a shared value. To advance that value, the Association acknowledges the right of the District to communicate information it deems important to any

employees, including CCEA bargaining unit members. This recognition extends to the District sending communications on issues of interest during the time that negotiations are taking place.

The District acknowledges that CCEA is the sole and exclusive representative of the teachers, mental health team members, and nurses in the District. During the time when negotiations are occurring, District communications specifically related to negotiations will include a notation to that effect in order to affirm that understanding.

Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding or Policies 4135, 4735, and 4879 should be construed to prevent the parties to engage in an effort to communicate jointly to CCEA's bargaining unit members. The parties commit to exploring the possibility of joint communication but will not be precluded from separate communications.

At the conclusion of each negotiating cycle and prior to submission to tentative agreements being submitted for ratification, the parties commit to issue a joint communication to all stakeholders briefly explaining the tentative agreements reached.

Adopted: June 15, 2015 Effective: July 1, 2014

#### Negotiated Nurse Rights, Policy 4734

#### A. Use of School Buildings by Staff During Non-school Hours

Staff members are permitted to work in school buildings during off-duty hours however, arrangements for that work will be made with the building administrator. It is the staff member's responsibility to maintain security of the building when personnel normally charged with that responsibility are not present.

#### B. Just Cause

No nurse shall be reprimanded, disciplined, suspended, reduced in compensation, transferred, adversely evaluated or terminated without just cause and due process. This provision does not apply to the termination of probationary nurses at the end of the first or second year of employment. C. <u>Official Personnel Files</u>

1. District Personnel File

The District will maintain an official District personnel file/record in the Office of Human Resources for each nurse. Although not necessarily maintained in the same location, the District will keep separate sub-files of each individual's personnel file. Examples of information that could be in such sub-files are: 1) health records and documents, 2) documents related to grievances, 3) documents related to administrative leaves, and 4) documents related to disciplinary measures. Access to these subfiles/records will be restricted to only those District employees who have a need for such access as determined by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. Anytime these types of personnel files/records are accessed for a purpose which may negatively affect the nurse, the nurse will be notified of the identity of the person accessing the file and the purpose for that access within two (2) workdays unless the nurse would have already been aware of such access.

2. <u>Building File</u>

Building level files/records for individual nurses are not part of the official District personnel file/record of the nurse but must comply with the same expectations identified in this Policy for District personnel files/records, including sub-files when applicable.

- 3. Access to Files
- a. Upon request and at an agreeable time, any nurse or any individuals authorized by the nurse will have the right to review the contents of his/her building file/record and/or the official District personnel file/record, including the sub-files.
- b. The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources will allow access to a nurse's official District personnel file/record including any sub-files only in the following instances:
  - i. Personnel of the Office of Human Resources are conducting routine duties associated with their job responsibilities; or
  - ii. Designees of the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources are conducting business of the District in accordance with their job responsibilities.
  - c. The Office of Human Resources will keep a log of all individuals who access the nurse's personnel file/record including sub-files and indicate the reason for that access, except for personnel who work in the Office of Human Resources and are conducting routine business associated with their job responsibilities.
  - d. The District will provide a copy of this log to the nurse if the nurse requests it.
  - e. When the District receives a court order to open and/or deliver/transmit any electronic information held or in the possession of the District related to the nurse's personnel file/record and/or disciplinary file/record the District must notify the nurse within three (3) workdays unless such notification is prohibited by law. 4. <u>Copies of Documents in Files</u>

If a nurse or a designated representative requests a copy of material contained within his/her building file/record and/or the official District personnel file/record including sub-files, the District will provide the copy of that material at no charge.

5. Anonymous Materials in Files

No anonymous materials shall be placed into the nurse's official District personnel file/record.

#### 6. <u>Right to Respond to Documents in Files</u>

The nurse shall have the right to submit a written response to any document filed in her/his official District personnel file/record. The nurse's written response, if any, shall be attached to all copies of the document to which it pertains.

#### 7. Required Signature on Evaluation Documents

Consistent with Policy 4737 the nurse must sign all documents related to evaluations that are placed into the official District personnel file/record of the nurse. Signatures will be submitted electronically as required within the District's evaluation program. The nurse's signature does not indicate agreement with the content of such material. The nurse will be provided with a copy of the signed document, or have access to print the signed document.

8. The nurse will have such other rights pertaining to access of personnel records as provided by state and federal law.

#### D. Criticism of Nurses I. Process For Addressing Criticism

- 1. The process for addressing criticism or concerns brought to an administrator regarding a specific nurse is:
  - a. Step 1: Contact the nurse about whom the concern was raised to discuss the concern and the administrator's initial judgment about the seriousness of it.
  - b. Step 2: The administrator may then choose to consider the investigation into the matter completed or conduct additional investigation into the matter and shall communicate this information to the nurse.
  - c. When reasonably necessary, the building administrator may not follow the above process. For example, to comply with the law, to respond to requests from law enforcement, to comply with a court order, or when no specific individual is attributed to the criticism or concern.
  - d. The intent of this section is to ensure that concerns are addressed in a timely manner and that the parties involved are aware of the process for considering the concern.
- 2. In addition to the above, the nurse will be given written notice of, and have the right to respond to, any material or information which is critical or negative in any nature concerning the nurse, and to be advised of the source of any such information, before such material or information may be used in any formal process involving matters such as reprimand, discipline, suspension, reduction in compensation, transfer, evaluation or termination.

Under certain circumstances, the identity of the source of critical or negative material may be kept confidential if the administrator has an objective basis to believe that the release of the identity would be detrimental to the health or safety of the source. While information from anonymous sources can be provided to the nurse, such information will not be used in any of the formal processes identified in the previous paragraph.

- II. Process for Submitting Documents of Criticism into Files
  - 1. Documentation of materials of a critical or derogatory nature shall not become part of a nurse's official District file/record including the disciplinary sub-file unless the following conditions are met:
    - a. When an administrator receives information, which, in the administrator's judgment, could become part of the process as outlined above, the administrator prior to the utilization of said material in any formal process, has the obligation to inform the nurse of that material in a timely manner, subject to section (D)(I)(2) above.
    - b. If the supervising administrator intends to place any document(s) in the nurse's personnel file that is critical, derogatory in nature or may adversely affect the nurse's employment status, the administrator shall hold an inperson meeting with the nurse and present him/her with two (2) copies of the document signed by the supervising administrator. The supervising administrator shall keep an addition signed original copy of the document for use, if needed.
      - i. The nurse will sign the document within seven (7) workdays and return one (1) copy of it with her/his signature to the supervising administrator.
      - ii. The nurse's signature will acknowledge having received the document but will not indicate agreement with the content of the disciplinary document(s).
      - iii. The nurse will retain an original of the signed document(s).
  - 2. If after seven (7) workdays the nurse has not returned a signed copy of the disciplinary document, the supervising administrator will:
    - a. make a notation (date and signature) on the supervising administrator's signed copy of the disciplinary document that the nurse failed to sign the disciplinary document,
    - b. communicate to the nurse that the disciplinary document will be placed in the official District file/record, and
    - c. place the disciplinary document in the nurse's disciplinary sub-file of the District personnel file.
  - 3. Only a document, which has a signature from the supervising administrator and meets the requirements of section (D) (II) may be placed in the official District file/record.

- 4. No anonymous materials shall be placed into the nurse's District personnel file/record.
- III. Process for Nurses to Submit a Written Response to Documents in a File
  - 1. The nurse shall have the right to attach a written response to any document filed in her/his official District file/record.
  - 2. The nurse shall have forty (40) working days to submit a written response. The forty (40) working days to respond shall commence at the time of the in-person meeting with the supervising administrator when the disciplinary documents were presented to the nurse as referenced in (D)(II)(1)(b) above. The nurse will sign the response.
  - 3. The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, or designee, must provide signed documentation of receipt of the nurse's response within five (5) working days either by email, District mail and/or U.S. Mail, whichever method(s) will provide the most expeditious communication.
  - 4. The nurse's written response, if any, shall be attached to the document to which it pertains.

#### IV. Process for Addressing Documents of Criticism in a Building Personnel file/record

The nurse shall have the right to attach a written response to any document(s) or material(s) filed in her/his building personnel file/record. The building supervisor/administrator shall follow guidelines similar to those described in the immediately preceding section (D) --except that the building supervisor/administrator shall assume all responsibilities identified for the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources.

#### V. <u>Requests for Removal of Disciplinary Documents</u>

Upon written request to the principal in the case of a building file/record or to the 1. Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources in the case of the disciplinary subfile of the nurse's official District personnel file/record, consideration will be given to removing a notation, which reflects adversely upon the nurse from the file/record. Commencing at a time not less than sixty (60) working days after being notified that a document is being placed in a file, the nurse may provide a written request for the removal from the file/record of a notation, which reflects adversely upon that nurse. If the request for removal is granted, all documents and materials associated with the notation will be expunged. If the request is denied, the appropriate administrator shall provide the nurse with the written reasons for denial. Nothing in this provision will preclude the appropriate administrator from removing such documents earlier or without a request from the nurse, nor does it preclude a nurse from making a request after a reasonable period of time after being denied. This section shall not pertain to ratings or comments on evaluations or observations.

2. If a nurse is exonerated following the completion of an investigation during which the nurse was placed on administrative leave with pay, all documents in any of the nurse's official District personnel file/record related to the incident or issue will be accessible only to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources and/or the Superintendent, or their designees.

#### VI. In-person meeting with community members

It is the responsibility of a nurse to meet with students and/or their parents regarding a question or criticism of his/her job performance, if the students or parents request a meeting. In the event of such a meeting, the nurse may request the presence of the building administrator, and the administrator will make every effort to provide for the professional integrity of the nurse.

#### E. <u>Professional Communications</u>

In all meetings involving nurses and administrators, the parties shall be responsible for ensuring that communications are conducted in a manner that maintains professional integrity.

#### F. <u>Required Meetings or Hearings</u>

Any nurse required to appear at a meeting or hearing before the Superintendent or his/her designee or the Board, or representative thereof, or to make an oral/written statement concerning a matter which could adversely affect the employment of the nurse, will be given written notice of the reason(s) for such a meeting or hearing and will be entitled to have another person of his/her choosing present to advise or represent him/her. The meeting will be scheduled at a time that allows the nurse to secure representation.

In addition, if the member chooses initially to attend such a meeting without a representative but requests a representative during the meeting, the administrator conducting the meeting shall halt the meeting in order to schedule it for a time when a representative can attend. This policy, however, does not preclude a nurse and administrator from having normal conferences and conversations. Any suspension of a nurse pending charges will be with pay.

#### G. Notification of Garnishment of Wages and Child Support Reporting

- 1. When the District is served with notification of garnishment action against a nurse, the District will, upon receipt, inform the nurse in writing of its legal obligation to garnishee the wage.
- 2. Upon the hiring of any employee the District will forward, in a timely manner, information required by federal and state child support laws to the appropriate federal or state agency.
- H. <u>Electronic Devices</u>
  - 1. Any information gathered by electronic devices shall be communicated to the nurse in a timely manner.

- 2. The provisions of section (B) above also apply to the use of information obtained through electronic devices.
- 3. Additionally, no information used in a nurse's evaluation report shall be gathered by electronic devices without the written consent of the nurse.
- 4. The District will comply with all state and federal laws.

#### I. Payment for Damages to Personal Property

The District recognizes that losses to personal property occasionally occur in spite of the exercise of reasonable precautions. Accordingly, if losses as described below occur, and the District finds the employee acted prudently, the District will pay an amount up to \$250 per occurrence ("amount allowed"), and not to exceed \$50,000 in the District aggregate per fiscal year, to be paid either to the employee for the loss or toward the insurance deductible for the loss, upon the submission of a complete claim for such payment. A claim must include evidence of a police report, report to the principal or supervisor within 48 hours of notice of the occurrence of loss, a description of how the loss occurred and a statement about what precautions against the loss were taken, and proof that an insurance claim was filed or a statement that coverage is not available.

- 1. Personal Assault: In the event an employee, while acting within the scope of his/her employment, has his/her personal effects such as clothing, glasses or jewelry damaged or destroyed as a result of an attack, assault, or pupil supervision problem, the District, will under District procedures, reimburse the nurse the allowed amount to repair or replace the item(s), provided such damage or destruction is not the result of the employee's negligence.
- 2. Stolen Personal Items: The District will reimburse the employee the allowed amount for wallets/purses, outerwear and briefcases and contents, if appropriate, which are stolen while on school grounds.
- 3. Stolen/Damaged Personal Property Used for Instruction: The District will reimburse the employee the allowed amount for stolen or damaged personal property used for instructional purposes at school.
- 4. Damaged Property Automobiles: The District will pay the allowed amount toward the insurance deductible for automobile damage due to vandalism providing the employee was acting within the scope of his/her employment.

#### J. Space for Personal Property

The District will provide a suitable space for reasonable personal effects, such as purses or briefcases in or reasonably near each employee's office, classroom, or workspace, that may be locked or secured to inhibit theft by students, visitors or vendors. In the event an employee brings a larger personal item for use at work, specific security arrangements should be made with the building administrator if there is not adequate secure space in or near the employee's work area.

#### K. <u>Personal Transportation</u>

The nurse shall not be required to transport any student in his/her personal car.

- L. District and Other Equipment and Technology
  - 1. When employees are issued or entrusted with District "electronic communication devices" (ECDs) which include but not limited to: Cell/smart phones, walkie-talkies, pagers and any other telecommunications devices that emits, receives or stores digital information, displays a message (e.g. computers, iPods, iPads or other tablet devices, etc.), and electronic entertainment devices like electronic games and compact disc players, the District agrees to not hold employees responsible for lost or damaged equipment and/or ECDs when the employee's actions have been prudent.
  - 2. When an employee, in reasonably carrying out building, worksite or District policy or procedure utilizes or takes control of student ECDs as defined in the section (L)(i) above, the District will not hold the employee responsible for loss of or damage to the student's ECDs when the employee's actions in the matter have been prudent and consistent with policy or procedure.
  - 3. This provision shall sunset with the adoption of policies and/or procedures based on recommendations from the Technology Task Force.
- M. Protection and Safety
  - 1. The District and the Association agree that schools need to be orderly, peaceful environments where high quality education can take place without the fear of physical and/or verbal violence.
  - 2. In order to meet the goal of having safe schools for employees and students while protecting the integrity of the learning environment, there must be policies and procedures that address the various aspects of school safety.
  - 3. It is not the intent of this policy to discourage individuals or groups from providing nurses with feedback, either positive or negative, regarding parents' or their children's concerns about the quality of nursing services clinic atmosphere, discipline, or interpersonal communication, or other relevant issues.
  - 4. The integrity of the instructional process and the delivery of related nursing services should be paramount in the school system. Nurses should not be required to meet with parents during clinic hours if that interaction would interfere with the delivery of time sensitive or essential nursing services. If parents attempt to address concerns regarding their child with the nurse while the nurse is engaged in performing other essential functions, the nurse may direct the parent to either set-up an appointment or to contact an administrator.
  - 5. When concerns are shared in a hostile manner through the use of abusive language, insults, threats, or loud discourse, the nurse is not obliged to continue.
  - 6. Harassment/intimidation exists if an individual or group:

- a. Directs personal insults (whether transmitted in writing, orally, or by electronic means) that are likely to incite an immediate adverse response from the person(s) being addressed.
- b. Threatens the employee with physical harm or actually harms a person.
- c. Damages, defaces or destroys private property of any person.
- d. Commits an act of harassment or intimidation (as defined by statute).
- e. Places a person in position of feeling at risk of emotional or psychological harm.
- 7. Staff members, who believe they have been the subject of harassment and/or intimidation, or who have witnessed harassment and/or intimidation, will report the incident immediately to the principal or designee. The results of any investigation will be reported to the complainant and further action, as deemed appropriate, will be taken (which may include reporting the incident to law enforcement authorities).

Split from Policy 4717, July 1, 2009.

Revised: May 26, 2015 Adopted: June 15, 2015 Effective: July 1, 2014

#### Negotiated Policy, Policy 4735

#### 1. **Definitions**

 A. The term "Nurse" as used in policy will mean and include any licensed person employed as a Nurse by the District and whose pay is determined by the Nurses
 Salery Schedule

Salary Schedule.

- B. The term "Administration" as defined in policy will mean a collective body of persons who manage, administer or direct the total educational enterprise of the District in whole or any part thereof. Administration will include all persons who hold an administrative license or an equivalent thereof and who are appointed by the Office of the Superintendent, who are paid in accordance with board policy for administrators, to assume full time one or more of the following responsibilities:
  - (1) Supervise, appraise and evaluate licensed and/or classified personnel,
  - (2) Allocate and expend certain designated school funds,
  - (3) Provide consultative services to licensed and/or classified personnel,
  - (4) Provide services to licensed, classified or support personnel primarily aimed toward improving instruction or the delivery of other student support services.

- (5) Supervise the maintenance and operation of the plant or facility or unit to which assigned,
- (6) Direct, supervise, and evaluate assignments projects, programs or operations designated by the Office of the Superintendent (i.e., special projects, Federal/State projects). The above should not be interpreted to mean that members of the administration may also assume teaching, mental health or nursing responsibilities except on a temporary, substituting basis.
- C. The term "Board" as used in policy will mean the Board of Education of School District No. 5, County of Arapahoe and State of Colorado.
- D. The term "Association" as used in policy will mean the Cherry Creek Education Association, Incorporated.
- E. The term "District" as used in policy will mean Cherry Creek School District No.5, in the County of Arapahoe and State of Colorado.
- F. The term "Superintendent" as used in policy will mean the Chief Executive Officer of the Cherry Creek School District No. 5 or designee.
- G. The term "School Calendar Year" as used in policy will mean the period of time as specified in Policy 4716.
- H. The term "Board Representatives" as used in policy will mean the members of the District Negotiations Team (DNT) appointed to represent the Board of Education in negotiations or discussions with the Association.
- I. The term "Association Representatives" as used in policy will mean the members of the Professional Negotiations Team (PNT) selected by the Association.
- J. The term "Negotiating Unit" shall mean all non-administrative employees of the District employed as Nurses to provide professional nursing services in support of District instructional programs who are paid on the Nurses Salary Schedule.
- K. The term "T.R.A.C." will mean The Rights Activity Committee of the association.
- L. The term "Per Diem" will mean the daily rate of pay as consistent with the nurse's contract as specified in Policy 4741 (2) (H).

#### 2. <u>Recognition</u>

A. The Board of Education recognizes the "Association" as the sole and exclusive representative of the negotiating unit for the purpose of negotiations between the District and the Negotiating Unit with regard to wages, benefits, hours, processing of grievances, and all other terms and conditions of employment. Nothing herein

should be interpreted to preclude both parties from agreeing to any other subjects for negotiations.

- B. This recognition will remain in effect unless another organization is elected by members of the negotiating unit to replace the "Association"
- C. <u>Election Procedures</u>
  - (1) Any group representing nurses wishing to replace the Association as negotiating agent for nurses or one or more nurses seeking to end the formal designation of an exclusive representative will present to the Board a petition requesting a representation election. The petition must carry the signatures of at least thirtyfive percent (35%) of the members of the negotiating unit.
  - (2) The petitioning group must secure agreement on election dates, procedures, and supervising agency with the Board and the Association. In the event an agreement is not reached within twenty (20) days the matters unresolved, will be referred to the American Arbitration Association for a resolution. Two-thirds of the cost of the election, which is necessary to insure validity, is to be paid by the petitioning group and one-third by the Association.
  - (3) Petitions to determine a change in the negotiating agent may be filed with the Board only between May 1 and May 15 of the year in which the negotiated salary package expires. Such elections will be conducted by a firm of auditors, mutually agreeable to all parties to the election, or the American Arbitration Association. A majority of those members voting in said elections shall constitute a majority for the purposes of determining representative recognition. a. Ballot/ Election Procedures
    - i. Only the petitioning party and the Cherry Creek Education Association, Incorporated will be on the ballot.
    - ii. If the petitioning party receives a majority (50% plus one) of the votes cast, they will be granted exclusive representative status, if applicable, for the bargaining unit.
    - iii. In the event there are two or more petitioning parties and if no party receives a majority as described above, a run-off election will occur among the parties receiving the highest number of votes.
    - b. Ballot/ Election certification
      - i. Once the results of the election have been certified by the entity conducting the elections, the question as to which party, if any, is the sole and exclusive representative of the negotiating unit shall be final.
    - c. Exclusive Representation

- i. If a petitioning party does not win the representation election the Cherry Creek Education Association, Incorporated shall be retained as the sole and exclusive representative of the negotiating unit.
- ii. If through the election process above, the Cherry Creek Education Association, Incorporated, is not retained as the sole and exclusive representative of the negotiating unit, the Negotiated Agreement for Teachers, shall terminate as of the date recognition is lost.
- d. Elections may be held, subject to the above conditions, only once during the course of a twelve (12) month period.

#### 3. Association Rights

a. The rights and privileges of the Association as set forth in this policy will be granted to the Cherry Creek Education Association and it's duly appointed representatives, as the exclusive representative of the nurses:

i. The use of school bulletin boards. ii.

The use of inter-school mail service.

- iii. The Association will have the right to use school equipment, including typewriters, photocopy machines, calculating machines, audio-visual equipment and other paper or document processing equipment at reasonable times when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association will also have the right to use desktop or other computer equipment and peripherals such as printers and scanners in a similar fashion provided that all such use shall be subject to and consistent with any District policy governing the use of electronic equipment by staff. Arrangements for the removal of any equipment from the building must be made in advance. The Association will pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incident to such use and for any repairs necessitated as a result thereof. Arrangements to use school facilities will be made with the administrator in charge.
- iv. The Association through its officers and representatives will have the right to communicate with staff in the bargaining units it represents via e-mail or like electronic means provided that any such communication will

comply with and be subject to any District policy concerning the use of email systems or the like or for communication via the internet or intranet.

- v. Opportunity to participate as appropriate with the building faculties and District-wide staff in meetings provided appropriate advance arrangements can be made with the person in charge of the meeting.
- vi. The right of having dates for the Association to have meetings and other important events published in District publications, provided the District's deadlines are met.

- vii. The right to have meetings at the close of a school day.
- viii. The Association will be the only organization to process grievances on behalf of nurses under policy 4736.
- b. <u>Information</u>
  - i. The District and the Association agree to furnish to each other information in response to specific requests or concerns including but not limited to:
    - 1. Proposed budgets, enrollment, and staffing data.
    - 2. District-assigned specialists.
    - 3. Annual financial reports and audits.
    - 4. Agenda and minutes of Board meetings.
    - 5. Census data as available.
    - 6. Group insurance premiums and experience figures.
    - 7. And such other information that will assist the informed and constructive creation and management of programs on behalf of employees and-students.
    - 8. Information which may be necessary for the Association to process any grievance or complaint.
  - ii. In addition, the District will provide the Association, on a regular basis:
    - 1. Any changes to Board Policies or Administrative Procedures.
    - 2. Copies of agenda, minutes, and proceedings of all regular or special meetings of the Board, except those held in executive session.
    - 3. Two current and revised copies of Board Policy and Administrative Procedure books.
    - 4. The District will allow use of duplication facilities and provide materials which will allow the Association to make up to ten copies of a particular document.
  - iii. The District will provide, at District expense, on compact disk (CD), each nurse a copy of the policies and procedures, for which they are contractually responsible.
    - a) The CD cover will clearly identify:
      - 1. the District and the Association,
      - 2. the name of the employee group, and
      - 3. the time period of the negotiated agreement.
    - b) The CD will be readable on both a PC and a Mac (i.e., a hybrid disk).

- c) The CD will contain:
  - 1. A suitable version of Adobe's Acrobat reader for the Mac and the PC.
  - 2. The policies and procedures, for which they are contractually responsible, for each employee group represented by the Association in PDF format.
- d) In addition, each school or main administrative department will provide a copy of operational procedures and policies unique to that office or building for the personal use of each licensed person assigned to that office or building. A copy of the personnel policies and procedures which are unique to nurses and affect nurse load or compensation will be given to each nurse on a schoolyear to school-year basis. These copies remain the property of the school, and will be updated annually by the respective department or building.
- e) The District will provide the CCEA with one hundred fifty (150) printed copies of the Teacher agreement and twenty-five (25) printed copies each of the Nurse and Mental Health team agreements. In addition, each building will receive and make available to members at least one printed copy of the Teacher agreement. If the building/facility has more than thirty (30) members of the bargaining unit, the building will receive an additional copy for each thirty (30) bargaining unit members or major portion. (E.g., a building with twenty-nine (29) members would receive one copy; a building with one hundred sixty-three (163) members would receive five (5) copies.)
- f) Using "First Class" within five (5) work days of Board approval or District enactment, the District will distribute changes in policies or procedures in PDF format to licensed personnel who will be affected by the changes or who must implement these changes.
- iv. Orientation sessions will be provided in each department or school once each year to review policies and procedures assigned licensed personnel. In addition, special orientation times will be provided for new licensed personnel to cover in detail the policies, procedures, privileges, and benefits of the Cherry Creek School District.
- c. Whenever any representative of the Association is required to participate during working hours in negotiations, grievance proceedings, conferences or meetings, that representative will suffer no loss of pay.

#### d. Association President

The President of the Association has the right to visit schools. The President will coordinate the visits with the offices of the principals in order to facilitate the purpose of this visit. Visits that are made to solve special problems of nurses will be arranged in advance by notifying the office of the principal.

e. The Association President will be furnished with copies of all written communications by the Central Administration which are published to aid in policy interpretation.

#### f. Association Leaves

- i. <u>President</u> Upon request of the Association, the President of the Association may be released from teaching duties up to full time, and the Association will pay monthly seventy-five percent of the appropriate portion of the salary and benefits including PERA, paid on behalf of the President. Specific arrangements for the release time will be mutually agreed upon by the president and building principal involved, with the District responsible for paying the cost of the classroom replacement. It is understood that there will only be one President for the Cherry Creek Education Association, Incorporated.
- ii. The Association shall be granted association leave each school year for its identified members to attend workshops, conferences, and other activities of the Association and its state and national affiliates. The Association shall approve such requests. For such days, the Association will pay the actual substitute nurses cost including PERA and Medicare, and the District will pay the per diem cost of the individual taking the leave.
- iii. Association leave will be exclusive of time necessary for nurses to testify at grievance hearings under Policy 4736 except as stipulated in Policy 4736, Section (D) (5). iv. Exceptions may be made upon mutual agreement.
- g. <u>Political Activities</u>

The Association may distribute the organization's political positions through the same means provided for the distribution of other official organizational communications so long as that communication is clearly identified as the official position of the Association, provided that this paragraph will not apply to the use of the District's inter-school mail service, and said service will not be used to distribute material relating to the Association's political positions or material on behalf of EDPAC or any local political action committee.

- h. <u>Payroll Deductions for Membership Dues</u>
  - i. The District will deduct in equal monthly installments from nurses' salaries the dues for the Association as nurses individually and voluntarily authorize, and will transmit the monies to the Association.
  - ii. Such payroll deductions will be continuous from year to year for those nurses who have signed a continuing membership application and payroll deduction authorization form. Nurses may withdraw their request for payroll deductions by notifying the District prior to the 10th of any month.
  - iii. The Association will notify the District prior to September 1 each year of the current rate of membership dues. The Association will submit authorization forms of new members to the District Payroll Office prior to the 10th of each month for dues to be deducted from that new member's payroll that month. The District will provide to the Association, on or before the last day of each month, a

complete list of nurses for whom dues are being deducted and a list of nurses who dropped their membership that month.

iv. In administering the District's payroll deduction system, the District will not make
 any additional expenditure of public funds or resources in order to collect or transmit contributions for EDPAC or any local political action committee above and beyond the expenditures made to collect and transmit the dues for the Association.

#### 4. <u>Initiating Negotiations</u>

- A. Upon written request by the Association to the Board, or by the Board to the Association, after September 1 and no later than November 1, the Board and the Association will arrange for negotiation as provided for herein.
- B. The Board will, upon the request of the Association, negotiate with the recognized Association in matters related to additions, deletions, and/or changes in Board policy as defined below. Nothing in this policy will be construed to preclude the Board from conferring with any employee or employee organization on a policy matter. Either party may present to the other a written request to negotiate on matters related to additions, deletions, and/or changes to Board policies dealing with nurse's salaries, wages, benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment.
- C. A written response will be made by the party in receipt of the request within eight (8) working days of the receipt of such request. This written response will indicate a time, date, and place for commencing negotiations.
- D. All negotiating sessions will be conducted at a time and place mutually agreeable to the negotiators named by each party, provided, however, the first meeting will be held within fifteen (15) days of the original written request unless other arrangements are mutually acceptable.
- E. In the event of legislative or regulatory changes other than changes in the Colorado School Funding structure this paragraph will apply.

Notwithstanding the restrictions set forth above, in the event of a change in Colorado or Federal statute or regulation that invalidates part or all of an existing policy or procedure negotiated pursuant to this policy, or as a result of the change, the District plans to implement action(s) that will change or affect salaries, wages, benefits or other terms and conditions of employment of bargaining unit members during the term of this negotiated policy, either the District or the Association may give notice to the other of reopening negotiations regarding the affected salaries, wages, benefits or other terms and conditions of employment of bargaining unit employees. Such a notice must be given in a reasonable time prior to the effective date of the change in legislation or regulation or district action. Additionally, the District will provide the Association with at least two (2) week notification of planned action to implement a change to comply with the statute or regulation. If either party gives notice of such a reopening

the other party will participate in negotiations regarding such change. Any such negotiations will be governed by and carried out in accordance with the procedures set forth in this policy.

#### 5. <u>Nature of Negotiations</u>

- a. The Board through its representatives and the Association through its representatives agree to negotiate in good faith endeavoring to reach agreement on matters open for negotiation consistent with the definitions included in the Initiating Negotiations Section above.
- b. During negotiations, the Board and/or its representatives and the Association representatives will present related data, exchange points of view and proposals and counter-proposals. The respective teams will endeavor to reflect the positions of the Board and the Association.
- c. If negotiations are scheduled during the school day, release time will be provided by the Board. The cost of substitutes will be paid by the Association. If impasse is declared and sessions are held during the school day, the cost of substitutes will be shared equally by the Association and the District.
- d. Negotiations will be closed to the press unless both sides decide otherwise. Releases to the media will be made jointly. This will not preclude either team communicating with their constituents, or having members of the Board or members of the negotiating unit from observing negotiations.
- e. The composition of each team will be established at the first session. Every effort will be made to keep the composition of each team the same. However, circumstances may arise which necessitate a change in the team composition. That team will make every effort to notify the other team prior to the next meeting.

#### 6. Adopting Recommendations

- a. Any agreement reached through negotiations will be put into written form and will be indicated as the recommendation of the Board representatives and the Association representatives for the approval of both parties. Such recommendation will carry the signatures of the spokesperson of each negotiating team.
- b. The recommendation becomes policy when approved by the Association and adopted by the Board.
- c. The Board cannot adopt any item of agreement which is contrary to the laws of the State of Colorado.
- d. The parties recognize that the Board must, by law, adopt a salary schedule commensurate with its ability to fund future budgets. Therefore, in the event of a reduction in the District's overall revenue that may lead to the District's inability to

fund the agreed to salary and benefits, the Board may move to reopen negotiations on financial matters (e.g.: salary, benefits and work year) in order to achieve a balanced budget.

e. The Association will pay for the printing of policies necessary for and prior to the ratification vote.

#### 7. <u>Mediation</u>

- A. If, during negotiations, as described, persistent disagreement is encountered, an impasse may be declared by either party at a negotiating session. Should impasse be in effect, the Board in its budget-building process will provide adequate funding for all proposals for which tentative agreement has been obtained, and consideration will be given for proposals still under negotiation.
- B. If negotiations have reached an impasse, the issues in dispute will be submitted to a Mediator for the purpose of inducing both parties to make a voluntary agreement. A concerted attempt will be made to find a Mediator acceptable to both parties. If such a person cannot be found, a request will be made by either party to the American Arbitration Association for the names of five qualified Mediators to be submitted to the Board Representatives and Association Representatives. The Mediator will be selected by the parties alternately striking a name from the list of names until one Mediator's name remains. The initial striking of a name will be done by the party who has not requested mediation. A Mediator will be selected, contracted, and retained within twenty (20) days of the formal declaration of impasse unless both parties agree otherwise.

#### 8. <u>Conducting Mediation</u>

- A. The format, dates, and times of meetings will be arranged by the Mediator, and such meetings will be closed to the press. Releases to the media will be made jointly.
- B. The Mediator will meet with the Board Representatives and the Association Representatives either separately or together.
- C. To the extent that tentative agreements are reached as a result of such mediation, the procedure provided in the Adopting Recommendations Section will apply. If mediation fails in whole or in part, the Mediator will report the issues that remain in dispute to the respective parties.
- D. The cost for services of the Mediator, including per diem expenses, if any, and necessary and actual travel expenses will be shared equally by the District and the Association.

#### 9. <u>Fact Finding</u>

A. If the mediation described above has failed to bring about agreements on any of the issues submitted for mediation, only the issues which remain in dispute will be submitted to a Fact Finder.

- B. In the event that the negotiating parties are unable to agree on a Fact Finder, the Fact Finder will be selected in the same manner as provided in the Mediation Section.
- C. The Fact Finder will have the authority to hold hearings and make procedural rules.
- D. The format, dates and times of meetings will be arranged by the Fact Finder. All meetings by the Fact Finder will be closed to the press. Releases to the media will be made jointly.
- E. Within fifteen (15) days after the conclusion of such hearings by the Fact Finder, the Fact Finder will submit a report in writing to the Board Representative and the Association Representative only. Said report will set forth his findings of fact, reasoning, and recommendations on the issues submitted. The report will be advisory only and binding on neither the Board Representative nor the Association Representative.
- F. Within ten (10) days after receiving the report of the Fact Finder, the Board Representative and Association Representative will meet to discuss the findings of the Fact Finder. This meeting is a continuation of the negotiations process. This meeting is closed to the press. News releases made after fact finding and prior to this meeting will be made jointly.
- G. The respective parties will take official action on the report of the Fact Finder no later than ten (10) days after the meeting or meetings described above.
- H. To the extent that tentative agreement is reached on the issues in dispute as a result of such fact finding, the procedures described and provided for under Adopting Recommendations will apply.
- I. The cost for the services of the Fact Finding will be shared equally by the District and the Association.
- J. Either party may request that an official stenographic record of the testimony taken at the fact-finding hearings be made and a copy of any transcript will be provided to the Fact Finder. The party requesting a stenographic record will pay the costs thereof, except that if the other party requests a copy of any transcript, it will share the entire cost of making the stenographic record.

#### 10. Committee Involvement

- a. Task Force
  - 1. Task Forces may be established, by mutual agreement to investigate specific problems or concerns and seek solutions to these problems or concerns.
  - 2. The number of members shall be mutually agreed to by the Superintendent or designee and the Cherry Creek Education Association.
- b. Medical Advisory Board

The District will maintain a Medical Advisory Board composed of physicians and other healthcare professionals from the community. The Nurses will have representation on the Board.

c. Other District Committees

Nurses may serve on Health Education and health-related committees at the building or District level.

Revised: February 15, 2012 Adopted: August 13, 2012 Effective: July 1, 2012

#### Nurse Grievance Procedures, Policy 4736

#### A. <u>Definitions</u>

- 1. A "grievant" will mean a party who has standing to initiate a grievance and meets one of the following criteria:
  - a. A Nurse or his/her representative on his/her behalf, or
  - b. a group of Nurses acting collectively, or their representative acting on their behalf, or
  - c. the Association acting on behalf of a group of bargaining unit members.
- 2. The term "grievance":
  - a. Will mean a written complaint that there has been a violation or inequitable application of any of the provisions of policies or administrative procedures, or
  - b. will mean a written complaint that a nurse has been treated inequitably by reason of any act or condition, which is contrary to established Board policy or practice governing or affecting teachers, and
  - c. will refer only to matters in which the Board has authority to act.
- 3. In this policy, "Days" refers to regularly-scheduled contract days for all parties involved so that all persons needed for the matter are available.

#### B. <u>Purpose</u>

1. Good morale is maintained by sincere efforts of all persons concerned to work toward constructive solutions in an atmosphere of courtesy and cooperation. The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible management level, equitable solutions to the problems which arise from time-to-time. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure. 2. Nothing contained herein will be construed as limiting the right of any nurse having a grievance to discuss the matter informally with any appropriate member of the administration and having the grievance adjusted, provided the adjustment is consistent with Board policy.

#### C. <u>Timelines for Filing Grievances</u>

1. Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the number

of days indicated at each level should be considered as a maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limit specified may, however, be extended or reduced by mutual agreement. Every attempt will be made to resolve grievances before the end of the grievant's contract year.

2. The maximum time allowed to file a grievance shall be thirty (30) days from the date the grievant knew or reasonably should have known of the grievable act or omission.

#### D. Procedures

- 1. <u>Representation</u>: Throughout Levels One and Two of the grievance procedures listed below the grievant may at any time:
  - a. Represent him/herself, or
  - b. request that the Association's Representative attend any meetings with him/her to provide advice or to speak on his/her behalf, or
  - c. request the Association represent him/her, or
  - d. request his/her own designated representative or counsel to accompany him/her or act on his/her behalf.
- 2. <u>Informal Conference</u>: Prior to the filing of a grievance, in an effort to resolve the issue(s), the grievant shall make reasonable attempts to initiate/discuss or an attempt to initiate/discuss the issue(s) informally with the grievant's principal or supervisor.
  - a. If an informal conference is held after the deadline for filing (see C-2 above), the nurse may file the grievance within seven (7) days after the informal conference.
  - b. The grievant has the right to file a grievance within the deadline even if an informal conference has not been held.
- 3. <u>Level One</u>: If not resolved through the informal conference, the grievant may file the grievance in writing with the principal or supervisor. The written grievance will state the nature of the grievance, the provision(s) of the agreement or any policy concerning terms and conditions of employment allegedly violated, and the relief requested.
  - a. The time limit for a principal or supervisor to process a grievance at Level One and provide the grievant and his/her representative a written response using "Grievance Form B" (4136.2) will be seven (7) days. The seven-day

period will begin when the principal or supervisor receives the written grievance submitted by the grievant.

4. <u>Level Two</u>: If the grievant is not satisfied with the written response at Level One, or a written response has not been received within the time limit specified herein, the grievant may file a written appeal to the District Administrator responsible for handling grievances. This appeal must be received within seven (7) days following receipt of the written response rendered by the principal or supervisor, or in the absence of such written response, within seven (7) days of the expiration date of the

time period specified for such written response.

- a. The District Administrator responsible for handling grievances ("Level Two Administrator"), will represent the Superintendent at Level Two of the grievance procedure.
- b. Within forty-eight (48) hours, or two days, whichever is longer, of its receipt, the District will provide the CCEA President with copies of any grievances filed at Level Two (including the Level One form and the Form B response to it unless such response was not given) unless the Association is already the grievant's representative or a party to the Level Two grievance. The District will notify the CCEA of the date and time for the Level Two hearing, and the CCEA will be allowed to have a representative present at the proceedings.
- c. The Level Two Hearing will take place at a mutually agreeable time within seven (7) days after the receipt of the written appeal from the grievant or at a later mutually agreed upon time.
- d. At the initial meeting of Level Two, the Level Two Administrator will hold a hearing at which both the grievant, with or without a representative(s) chosen by the grievant, and the appropriate administrator(s) are present.
- e. After the Level Two Hearing, the Level Two Administrator may investigate and consult with the grievant and/or the appropriate administrator(s) in an effort to resolve the grievance.
- f. Within ten (10) days after the hearing, the Level Two Administrator will provide a written document on the proposed resolution of the grievance to all parties of interest, including CCEA, setting forth the decision and its rationale.
- 5. <u>Level Three</u>: If the grievant does not accept the Level Two Administrator's resolution at Level Two or a written response has not been received within the time limit specified, the Association may choose to submit the grievance directly to the Board for a hearing on the grievance or choose to submit the grievance to Arbitration.
  - a. To initiate Level Three proceedings, the Association will notify the superintendent or designee in writing within ten (10) days of receiving the Level Two Administrator's decision.

- b. The names of three approved Hearing Examiners will be listed in alphabetical order. The name at the top of the list will be the Examiner used for the Level Three Hearing. If the person at the top of the list cannot serve, the second will be contacted and so on. Once a Hearing Examiner has served, that name will be placed at the bottom of the list. This person will be called upon again only if the first two cannot serve, or when that name moves upward on the list. The cost of the hearing will be shared equally by the Board and the CCEA.
- c. The Hearing Examiner will have the authority to hold hearings, collect written and verbal testimony and make procedural rules. The Hearing Examiner will have no authority to amend, modify, ignore, add to or subtract from the provisions of Board Policy. The Hearing Examiner will also be without power to issue an award inconsistent with the laws of the State of Colorado.
- d. All hearings will be closed to persons not specifically involved in the grievance. The Hearing Examiner's written report will be mailed simultaneously to the Board and the grievant within twenty (20) days of the conclusion of the hearing, and will set forth finding of fact, reasoning, conclusions, opinions and recommendations on the issues submitted. The report will be advisory only and be binding on neither the Board nor the grievant and/or representative.
- e. After conclusion of the hearing of the grievance by the Board, or after receiving the report of the Hearing Examiner, the Board will take action on the resolution of the grievance in a timely fashion at a regularly-scheduled Board meeting.

#### E. <u>Miscellaneous Provisions</u>

- 1. No reprisals will be taken against any person involved in any way in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 2. A class-action grievance may be filed by:
  - a. An aggrieved group of Nurses from different buildings or the Association acting on their behalf or
  - b. if a grievance affects a group of bargaining unit members, the Association may submit such a grievance, and
  - c. a class-action grievance must be filed in writing by a group of bargaining unit members or by the Association leadership on behalf of a group of bargaining unit members within thirty (30) contract days following the act or condition that is the basis of the grievance and the grievance shall begin at Level Two. The procedures of this policy, as outlined in Level Two, and Three shall be followed for class-action grievances.
- 3. All written and printed matter dealing with the processing of a grievance will be filed separately from any other personnel files/record(s) of the participants.

- 4. At all steps of the process, the District and the grievant will make available to one another all information permitted by law which is in their possession or control, and which is relevant to the issues raised by the grievance upon request. Such information will be provided no later than two (2) days after a request for the information has been made and not later than two (2) days prior to any hearing provided the request is made at least four (4) days prior to the hearing.
- 5. When necessary at Level Two and Level Three for the grievant to attend a meeting or a hearing called by the Board, the Administration, or the Hearing Examiner, the Principal(s) of such nurse(s) will be notified, and he/she will be released without loss of pay for such time as attendance is required. If substitute nurses are needed, the cost will be shared equally by the grievant and the Board. Association leave will be charged where applicable for the Association's Representative, serving as the grievant's representative, or at Level Three as the Association's Representative.
- 6. Failure at any level of this procedure to appeal a decision in writing within the specified or mutually agreed upon time limits will indicate the forfeiture of the right of the grievant to proceed further in the grievance procedure, and the grievance will be considered settled, based upon the decision as stated in the previous step of the procedure.
- 7. The District and the Association will select a mutually-acceptable list of three (3) permanent Hearing Examiners. This list of individuals will be reviewed and updated annually.
- 8. Any provision of this policy may be modified if the parties mutually agree to do so. Such agreement(s) should be in writing.
- 9. This procedure will not abrogate the rights and responsibilities of the Board under the provisions of the Nurse Employment, Compensation, and Dismissal Act of the State of Colorado or other applicable laws.

#### F. Additional Provisions

- 1. The terms of this policy will continue in full force and effect unless changed through the negotiations process as set forth in Policy 4734.
- 2. If any provision of this policy is found contrary to law, then such provision will be deemed null and void, but all other provisions or applications thereof will continue in full force and effect.
- 3. Upon mutual agreement, this policy may be renegotiated in whole or in part at any time during the life of this policy.
- 4. Any additions, deletions or revisions to this policy will be distributed to those affected, and be in effect after ratification by the Association membership and adoption of the Board.
- 5. Neither the recognized Association nor the Board can refuse to negotiate this policy at the next requested round of negotiations, following the timeline set forth in Policy

4734, if this policy is included in the request. If the issues are unresolved as a result of the negotiations using all relief provided in Policy 4734, the provisions will remain in effect (except as provided elsewhere in this section) through the remainder of the nurses' annual contract year.

Revised: July 1, 2013 Adopted: September 9, 2013 Effective: July 1, 2013

#### **GRIEVANCE FORM,** Administrative Procedure 4736.1

#### **LEVEL I OR II**

Name of Grievant
Date Grievance Occurred
Position of Grievant
School

Principal, Executive Director of Student Achievement Services, or Designee

Brief statement of grievance including specific policy or procedure violated:

## **Employment Information**

#### Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action, Policy 4001

From its inception, the Cherry Creek School District has attempted to develop policies and procedures to assure the employment, retention and promotion of personnel on the basis of merit without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or handicap. This policy reaffirms our fundamental goal of pursuing equal employment opportunity in all matters of personnel actions fulfilling the letter and intent of laws designed to eradicate discrimination or harassment in conditions of employment. This commitment specifically provides that the recruitment, hiring, retention, opportunities for advancement, compensation, termination of employees be done on the basis of bona fide occupational qualifications and educational requirements of the District, without favor, influence or harassment and without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or handicap.

Revised: March 9, 1981 Adopted: April 6, 1981

#### Responsibilities for Licensed and Classified Personnel, Policy 4001.1

The Office of the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources is responsible for matters dealing with the overall management of the licensed and classified staff of the Cherry Creek School District.

Matters of personnel concern needing central administrative guidance and/or assistance should be referred to the Office of Human Resources.

Approved by Superintendent Richard P. Koeppe, January 12, 1981.

#### **Definition of Licensed Personnel**, *Policy 4008*

The term "Licensed Employee" is applied to an employee who holds

one or more documents such as a license or a letter of authorization which has been granted by the State Department of Education.

All employees who are directly responsible for the instruction or guidance of pupils, or who administer such instruction, shall be licensed employees.

#### **Definition of Classified Personnel**

Cherry Creek School District no. 5, Greenwood Village, CO 80111

The term "Classified Employee" is applied to employees who are not required to hold a certificate or a letter of authorization as a prerequisite to obtain or keep their job.

Adopted: January 10, 1983 Effective: January 1, 1983

#### Definition of School Nurse, Policy 4708

The term "school nurse" is applied to a person who holds a current license to practice professional nursing by registration under the laws of the State of Colorado. The school nurse is responsible for administering the Health Services in the school(s) to which he/she is assigned.

Proposed: June 9, 1997 Adopted: June 9, 1997 Effective: July 1, 1997

#### Employment, Policy 4015

The Board of Education is obligated to hire the most qualified applicants to fill existing vacancies.

Qualified applicants who have followed the District application process may include in-district transfers, as well as individuals not currently employed by the Cherry Creek School District.

Proposed: May 10, 1982 Adopted: June 14, 1982

#### Nurse Employment, *Policy 4710*

A. Upon initial employment, all newly hired school nurses shall receive a written employment contract that includes the number of workdays and their annual salary. Two (2) copies of this contract shall be issued to the nurse. The nurse shall sign both copies and return them to the District, and within two (2) calendar weeks following submission to the District, one (1) copy with the signatures of both parties shall be returned to the nurse.

#### B. <u>Nurse Probationary Period</u>

- 1. Effective July 1, 2010 all nurses shall serve a probationary period of two (2) continuous years upon employment with the District. At the end of either of those two (2) years, the District may terminate a probationary nurse without just cause or due process.
- To qualify for a year, the definition of "In-District Credit" in Policy 4741, Section (B), shall be applied. Paid leave, sick leave, general leave and unpaid district approved leave will be considered as time worked.
- 3. Any nurse who is not notified of their termination in writing by the superintendent before June 1 at the end of the first and/or second year of employment shall be

reemployed for the following school year. The District will provide the nurse with the notice of termination either in person or at the nurse's last known address.

#### C. <u>Non-Probationary Nurses</u>

- 1. Any nurse employed with the District, during the 2009-2010 school year, will be a non-probationary nurse.
- 2. Any nurse who has not received written notice of termination according to Section (B)(3) above at the end of the second continuous year of employment with the district will become a non-probationary nurse.
- 3. A nurse who does not provide written notification to the district of their intent not to return to employment or does not report to work, unless on an approved leave of absence, shall be considered to have surrendered the right to non-probationary

status and will be subject to Section (B) above if rehired.

#### D. <u>Non-discrimination</u>

There shall be no discrimination in the hiring process on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, sexual orientation, genetic information, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status or disability.

Prior to hiring any person, in accordance with state law, the District shall conduct background checks with the Colorado Department of Education and previous employers regarding an applicant's eligibility for employment. In all cases where credit reports are used in the hiring process, the District shall comply with the Fair Credit Reporting Act.

Changed from Policy 4701.

Revised: July 3, 2013 Adopted: August 12, 2013 Effective: July 1, 2013

#### 21st Century Partnership, Memorandum of Understanding

During the 2018-2019 school year, schools will have the opportunity to develop progressive approaches for improvements to operational effectiveness and efficiencies. In order to meet the District's overall goals to maximize and increase student achievement and wellbeing, schools will have the opportunity to apply for a 21<sup>st</sup> Century Partnership. This partnership allows for a school to waive specific policy language for a specific period of time. All partnerships will be subject to review and evaluation.

A waiver, which may be initiated by any staff member, must be submitted to the 21<sup>st</sup> Century Partnership Committee in writing as outlined below:

• All waiver requests will be reviewed, approved and jointly submitted by a building principal and AR to the 21<sup>st</sup> Century Partnership Committee – Attn: CCEA and CCSE at Educational Service Center. A copy should be sent to both CCEA and CCSD.

- A statement must be submitted specifically explaining the policy provisions for which the waiver is being requested such as, but not limited to, program implementation, after school tutorials, after school PLCs, etc.
- A written rationale for the waiver must explain why it is necessary and how it is linked to increasing student achievement and serving the whole child.
- The proposal must include a timeline for implementation and evaluation.
- The completed proposal must be available for review to all affected parties for at least 10 working days prior to an anonymous voting process.
- Evidence of support for the requested waiver must have 100% of the impacted employees in agreement for the 2018-2019 school year. For the purposes of the 2019 negotiations, both parties agree to assess the effectiveness of this approach.
- Applicants must re-submit the proposal annually to be evaluated by the committee.
- No multi-year proposals will be accepted during the 2018-2019 school year; however, multi-year proposals may be considered during the 2019 negotiations.
- All approved proposals will be published on the HR website.

21<sup>st</sup> Century Waivers cannot be utilized for the following:

- Salary
- Benefits
- Status probationary and non-probationary
- New policy language within its first year of implementation

The 21<sup>st</sup> Century Partnership Committee will consist of the following:

- Three (3) members from the CCEA Leadership Team,
- Three (3) members from the District which would include: Two from Human Resources
  - One from Educational Operations directly responsible for overseeing the school or department

Approval of any proposal must have 100% support of the 21<sup>st</sup> Century Partnership Committee.

The 21<sup>st</sup> Century Partnership Committee will meet as needed and decisions will be made by consensus and are final with no recourse for appeal. Decisions will be communicated no later than 15 working days.

Adopted: August 13, 2018 Effective: July 1, 2018

#### Nurses' Pilot Model for Short-Term Assignments, Memorandum of Understanding

#### **District Model Pilot:**

The District will continue to strive to have a nurse assigned to each school site, with the exception of the continuation of current assignments involving some designated pairs of low enrollment schools or groups of educational programs (based on current programming).

If the District is unable to fill one or more school nurse positions and a substitute nurse is not available for such an assignment, until a nurse can be hired for the position, the following factors shall be applied for the short-term assignment:

- The short-term assignment is intended to be a temporary change in assignment and will not exceed one school year. In the case of a volunteer to a short-term assignment, the parties may agree to make the assignment on-going if the nurse and the affected principals agree to do so prior to the position being filled by an external applicant.
- The District will post all positions requiring short-term assignments and such assignments will end when a nurse is hired for the posted vacancy or at the end of the school year during which the short-term assignment was made. At the conclusion of the short-term assignment (either at the end of the school year or when a nurse is hired to fill the vacancy), the nurse in the short-term assignment will return to her/his original assignment.
- The first priority shall be to have a nurse assigned to each secondary school. It is the intent of the District to maintain the level of health technician support in these schools at current levels. The District will make every effort to do so.
- As soon as the need for a short-term assignment is identified, the Designated District Administrator ("DDA") will send a request to all current nurses for volunteers to assume a secondary school opening or the additional paired school. All such short-term assignments shall be disseminated at the same time if more than one is needed. Any elementary nurse interested in volunteering shall be required to respond within two working days. To ensure maximum flexibility in serving student needs, the DDA shall consider the qualifications of any or all interested volunteer(s) first, and then those of any other nurse prior to making a short-term assignment. The DDA will notify any nurse or nurses who volunteered as to the disposition of the short-term assignment opening.
- In instances of involuntary, short-term assignment of a nurse, the determination of which nurse to work with the paired schools will take into account such factors as proximity of the schools to each other, preference for pairing schools in the same feeder area, pupil count, acuity, presence and size of preschools as well as before and after school programs, and ILCs or the presence of other student achievement services programs in either building. A full-time health technician will be paired with a nurse in each short-term assignment. In order to best meet the needs of students and the schools, the nurse will consult with the DDA in determining a schedule to cover those needs. This scheduling shall include reasonable protocols for urgent/emergency situations.
- This scheduling shall also include consultation with the DDA and building principals regarding allotted time for the nurse to ensure that the nurse can fulfill legal responsibilities for supervision of delegatees. In addition, the DDA shall

ultimately determine if additional health technician support is needed on a casebycase basis.

- Nurses in regularly paired schools or with multiple program assignments may volunteer but will not be involuntarily assigned to a short-term assignment.
- The DDA shall consult with the nurse regarding the assigned health technician prior to and during any short-term assignment. The training, preparation to meet qualifications for delegation, and support of the health technician is primarily the responsibility of the DDA. To the extent possible, the nurse will assist in this process. Nurses will share delegation concerns, should they arise, with the DDA, and the two shall jointly plan to address any such concerns. The DDA shall be ultimately responsible for health technician hiring, initial training, and termination from employment. Nurses may volunteer to be part of the hiring and training processes and shall be informed of such opportunities.
- Nurses who assume responsibilities for a new building and/or a pairing of elementary buildings shall be provided a minimum of two working days of transition time with the health technicians and/or the nurse previously in the building. Additional flexibility and/or support for transition and training may be provided by the DDA if requested by the nurse or health technician.
- In order to work as a health technician, the individual must be capable of receiving delegation responsibilities under the nurse's license. The District will not require any nurse to delegate to any individual.
- While no additional pay will be provided to nurses covering paired buildings, such nurses will receive mileage reimbursement and a District-provided cell phone for work-related purposes.
- This pilot will not be implemented in cases of a nurse on a short-term leave (i.e. sick or general leave).
- Nurses who are reassigned to a short-term assignment in a secondary school or assigned to more than one site shall have their evaluations modified to reflect this modification to their assignment.
- Every effort will be made to avoid assigning a nurse in his/her first two (2) years of employment in the District to paired schools. This provision is not intended to prevent a nurse from volunteering for a short-term assignment, however.

This Memorandum of Understanding will apply in the 2017-2018 school year.

Revised: May 25, 2017 Adopted: June 12, 2017 Effective: July 1, 2017

# Transfer, Policy 4715

### **Voluntary Transfer Procedure**

When a nurse vacancy occurs within the District, it shall be posted in accordance with Administrative Procedure 4715.1. Any nurse currently employed within the District who applies will be given serious consideration.

### **Involuntary Transfer Procedure**

The District and the Association recognize that from time to time, involuntary transfers become necessary. It is agreed, that under normal circumstances, involuntary transfers should be held to a minimum.

Involuntary transfer, as it relates to this policy, shall mean a District initiated transfer from one school to another that becomes necessary due to enrollment decline or program change.

# Procedure Step 1 Request for volunteers

Information about available positions will be shared with the nurses who are subject to being involuntarily transferred and a request made for volunteers who would be willing to be placed in those positions. If a nurse volunteers, who in the judgment of the

principal and the Office of Student Achievement Services, is qualified and meets the requirements of the position, the Executive Director of Human Resources will make the assignment. If more than one person volunteers, consideration will be given to all volunteers and after consultation with the principals of the sending and receiving schools, the Office of Student Achievement Services and the Executive Director of Human Resources will make the assignment based on the following:

- 1) Consideration of unique qualifications based on the needs of the school/program.
- 2) Length of service as a school nurse within the District.

# Step 2 Identification of non-volunteers

In the event no one volunteers, the District administration will identify the nurse(s) who meet the needs of the position(s) and will notify the nurse(s) involved within 30 days of the decision and every attempt will be made to assure as smooth as transition as possible. When identifying and assigning non-volunteers, the District will consider the following:

- 1) Unique qualifications based on the needs of the school/program.
- 2) Length of service as a school nurse within the District. (the nurse with the greatest length of service will remain in the current position

Revised: September 24, 2014 Adopted: June 15, 2015 Effective: July 1, 2014

### Nurse Transfer Procedure, Administrative Procedure 4715.1

When a nurse position becomes available within the District, any qualified nurse will be given consideration.

In order that this may be realized, all nurses must follow the procedure as listed.

Please use the following transfer procedure to assure consideration of in-District nurses in filling all vacancies.

<u>Step 1</u>: The Office of Human Resources will post vacancies as soon as possible after receipt and approval of the Personnel Requisition.

The vacancy announcement will be posted on the District's website for a period of eight (8) calendar days.

- <u>Step 2</u>: Those interested in specific transfer opportunities must submit an online Transfer Request form to the Office of Human Resources no later than 4:00 p.m. on the closing date of the vacancy.
  - a. Online Transfer Request forms are available on the District's website.
  - b. Kiosks with computers are available in the Office of Human Resources for District employees to submit an online Transfer Request form.
  - c. The Office of Human Resources will electronically acknowledge receipt of the online Transfer Request form.
- <u>Step 3</u>: Following the closing date, a list of all transfer applicants will be available online to the appropriate building administrator and/or Director of Nursing Services, or designee, for review.
- <u>Step 4</u>: The administrator and/or Director of Nursing Services, or designee, will consider all applicants for a vacancy and select applicants for interviews based on their qualifications for the vacancy.
- <u>Step 5</u>: Within thirty (30) calendar days, the building administrator and/or Director of Nursing Services, or designee(s), must decide to:
  - a. Recommend a candidate to fill the vacancy, or
  - b. Cancel the vacancy, or
  - c. Request the Office of Human Resources to repost the vacancy or position, or
  - d. At the request of the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, or designee, the thirty (30) days period may be extended to accommodate unusual circumstances.

We recognize the fact that informal communication between administrators and potential applicants may occur in an effort to secure the most highly qualified staff possible. This should not, however, interfere with consideration of all in-District transfer requests.

Adopted: June 15, 2015 Effective: July 1, 2014

### Reduction of Nurses, Policy 4760

When the District experiences a decline in student enrollment and/or a fiscal exigency of such magnitude that a reduction of force is justified, it will be the policy of the Board to follow the procedures listed below to guarantee the most equitable situation for the nurses involved.

### **Procedures**

- 1. Should the District allege the need at any time for contract cancellations due to a reduction of position(s), the affected nurse(s) and the Association, if requested by the Association, will be notified of the conditions necessitating the reduction in force at least forty working days before the anticipated reduction. The Superintendent will furnish the Board and the Association with identical facts, figures and relevant data justifying the proposed reduction in force.
- 2. The District must attempt to avoid reductions in force by reducing the number of employees through attrition. Attrition will include retirement, resignations and extended leaves of absence.
- 3. Every attempt will be made to reassign qualified nurses to other nurse positions in the District for which they are qualified in order to avoid reductions in force.
- 4. If reassignment is not possible, nurses will be reduced based on:
  - a.) satisfactory evaluations/appraisals
  - b.) experience as a school nurse in the District
  - c.) overall health services program needs
  - d.) input from supervisors
  - e.) length of service in the District
  - f.) other factors which may be identified at the time and applied to all nurses

The criteria will be considered in the order above unless either party requests a panel to be convened to consider special program needs which might impact the application of this section of the policy. The panel shall consist of two members of the nurses' association, the Director of Pupil Services or designee, and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee.

- 5. One year of in-district service will be counted for a full semester or 90 working days or more as a school nurse in the District. Board approved leaves of absence do not constitute a break in service, however, the time of such leave is not counted when calculating years of service.
- 6. If a nurse wishes to challenge the contract cancellation, a grievance may be commenced at Level 2 using the Grievance Procedure found in Policy 4736.

### **Recall Procedure**

- 1. A nurse whose contract has been canceled is eligible to use the Grievance Procedure, commencing at Level 2, if a dispute arises regarding these recall provisions.
- 2. A nurse will remain on the recall list for two years from the date of his/her contract cancellation.
- 3. The District will not hire a new nurse to fill a position for which a nurse on the recall list is eligible.
- 4. When a position becomes available, qualified nurses whose contracts have been canceled will be recalled in the reverse orders of their contract cancellation.
- 5. A nurse will be notified of recall by certified letter. Copies of all recall letters shall be sent to the Association. The recalled nurse will have 14 calendar days from the receipt of the notice to accept the position. If the nurse does not respond in writing within 14 days, he/she will be deemed to have refused the position and will be removed from the recall list. The nurse has the obligation to inform the District of his/her current address.
- 6. A nurse recalled within two years will be placed on the salary formula and given full credit for previous Cherry Creek school nurse experience and education as in Policy 4741.

Revised: June 12, 1995 Adopted: June 23, 1995 Effective: July 1, 1995

# Nurse Work Year and Working Hours and Working Schedule, Policy 4716

### A. School Calendar Year

- 1. The contract year will commence July 1 and terminate June 30 for the purposes of clarification of contracts, granting of increments and payment of extended contracts.
- 2. A regular contract for nurses will be 185 days.
  - a. The nurse's individual calendar shall have:
    - i. No more than one hundred seventy-four (174) days scheduled as pupil contact days, and
    - ii. Eleven (11) days scheduled as pupil non-contact days. The dates for these days will be identified prior to a nurse signing the contract for the upcoming school year, and
    - iii. All nurses will have the Wednesday before the Thanksgiving Break off as compensatory time for additional duties performed outside the workday during fall semester, and
    - iv. Nurses who are assigned to work at more than one site shall have one (1) additional pupil non-contact day scheduled each month (August through June), with a substitute nurse, provided by the District. The purposes of

these days are for the nurse to collaborate with, and supervise, the health tech at the site. These days may also be used for the completion of required health office paperwork. The dates for these additional non-contact days will be identified prior to a nurse signing the contract for the upcoming school year subject to revision by mutual agreement.

- b. Student Registration Days:
  - i. A nurse may be required to work additional weekdays for student registration prior to an upcoming school year provided such days are identified before the last day of the nurse's current work year. ii. The dates for the additional registration days will be identified prior to a nurse signing the contract for the upcoming school year.
- c. Nurses on year-round calendars shall have:
  - i. Any nurse contracted to work more than a regular contract will be scheduled for one (1) additional pupil non-contact day for every nine (9) contact/ contracted days worked. Pupil non-contact days will be part of the total contracted days. The purposes of these additional pupil non-contact days are for the completion of required health office paperwork.
  - ii. The dates for any additional contact and/or non-contact days will be identified prior to a nurse signing the contract for the upcoming school year.
- d. Upon employment with the District, and before beginning work at a site, nurses shall have two (2) additional pupil non-contact days added to the regular contract paid at per diem. The purposes of these additional non-contact days are for training in the Cherry Creek Health Services System as directed by the Health Services Coordinator.
  - i. The training shall include but not limited to an overview of district policies, procedures and practices, and;
  - ii. Upon completion of the initial training program the nurse will participate in a mentoring program based on the individual needs of the nurse.
- 3. A nurse and principal may mutually agree to work more than a regular contract with the approval of the Office of Student Achievement Services. Nurses who work more than the regular contract will be compensated at their per diem rate.
- 4. For contracts greater than a regular contract in length, any nurse contracted for additional days will have at least the number of contact days and non-contact days specified in the applicable section above. The nature of the additional days (contact or non-contact) will be determined by the specific need the additional days are designed to address.

Any nurse contracted to work more than two hundred twenty-four (224) days will be contracted to work a total of at least twelve (12) pupil non-contact days. Pupil noncontact days will be part of the total contracted days.

- 5. The primary purposes of the pupil non-contact days are for the completion of required health office paperwork. A nurse and principal may mutually agree to use pupil notcontact days for: staff orientation, staff meetings, team meetings, parent conferences, and continuing health care education. All scheduled activities will be carefully planned and conducted to best accomplish these purposes.
  - a. The district recognizes that it is important for nurses to have time to perform required health-office paperwork. Therefore, nurses will not be required to attend building meetings held during student non-contact days.

# B. Forty (40) Hour Work Week

- 1. The length of the workday for nurses will be eight (8) hours including the duty free lunch period and relief breaks.
- 2. The workweek will be forty (40) hours each week.
- 3. Building administrators will use discretion for individualization of the eight (8) hour workday for nurses.

# C. <u>Duty-Free Lunch</u>

Each nurse will receive a minimum of thirty (30) continuous minutes for lunch such that:

- 1. The nurse shall not be assigned to any instruction, duty or supervision, and;
- 2. It is understood that the nurse will notify the site's main office where they can be reached during their scheduled lunchtime for emergency situations.
- 3. Nurses may leave the building during their duty-free lunch but must follow building notification procedures.

# D. <u>Health Services Meetings</u>

- 1. All nurses are required to attend nine (9) monthly health services meetings during their calendar year. These meetings will occur outside of the workday.
- 2. On those occasions when a nurse cannot attend a meeting, the nurse will be expected to contact Health Services in the Student Achievement Services Office either prior to the meeting, if the absence is preplanned, or subsequent to the absence.
- 3. Nurses will receive an additional day's pay at their per diem in their June paycheck provided they do not miss more than two meetings. This rate will not be adjusted to reflect a payment based on any other proportion of attendance.
- 4. The Director Student Achievement Services (or a designee) will be responsible to maintain records for determining payments.

# E. Additional School Functions

1. Building administrators may encourage their nursing staff to participate in school/community-sponsored functions.

2. Flexible time may be granted if a nurse participates in school/District functions outside of the normal workday. Such flexible time will be jointly agreed to between the nurse and the building administrator.

### F. Adverse Weather Conditions: Delayed Starts

In the event of adverse weather conditions causing a delayed start, nurses, taking into account weather and road conditions, should report to their site as expeditiously as possible.

Revised: June 8, 2009 Adopted: August 10, 2009 Effective: July 1, 2009

### School Closure, Policy 4716.1

When schools are closed to students due to adverse weather conditions, nurses are not expected to report to their assigned buildings. The Board of Education may reschedule workdays not held through a revision of nurse calendars. The Superintendent or designee is responsible for communicating any calendar revisions in a timely manner.

Approved by Superintendent, Richard P. Koeppe, November 8, 1982.

Revised by Superintendent, Mary F. Chesley, July 1, 2009.

### Role of Nurse, Policy 4717

### A. Role of the School Nurse

- 1. As per terms of the written contract, the nurse accepts employment to deliver, directly or through delegation, the Health Services in the schools of Cherry Creek School District at the school assigned by the administration.
- 2. The primary role of the nurse is to deliver the Health Services in the school(s) to which he/she is assigned to ensure that the health needs of students are addressed during the school day. In order to support the health of students, the nurse cares for accident and illness at school in coordination with other providers. The nurse also develops and promotes good community relations among various community and school clientele. Nursing services are to be delivered consistent with all federal/ state laws and/or regulations along with district policies, practices and procedures.
- 3. Nurses will be evaluated by supervisors on how well this role is performed in accordance with Policy 4737.

Revised: June 8, 2009 Adopted: August 10, 2009 Effective: July 1, 2009

### **Resignation/Retirement, Policy 4719**

A. Written notice of intent to resign shall be submitted to the Office of Human Resources at least ten days prior to the proposed effective date of termination. This ten-day period may be waived by the Superintendent in case of emergency.

### B. <u>P.E.R.A. Membership</u>

All nurses shall, by law, become members of the Public Employees' Retirement Association (PERA).

Revised: October 14, 2002 Adopted: October 14, 2002 Effective: July 1, 2002

### Substitute Nurses, Policy 4722

The Cherry Creek School District will maintain a system of school nurse substitutes. Substitute nurses will be employed when deemed necessary and desirable to maintain adequate levels of health services within budgetary limitations. They will be compensated as established by the Office of Human Resources and the Executive Director of Student Achievement Services.

Split from Policy 4707

Revised: June 24, 1998 Adopted: June 24, 1998 Effective: July 1, 1998

### Student Nurses, Policy 4723

- A. The District Health Services encourages cooperation with the local colleges and universities which have Nursing Programs by offering opportunities for school nursing experience under the direction of a school nurse. The purpose of this program is to familiarize the student nurse with the specialty of school nursing. The assignment of the student nurse must be approved by the Office of Student Achievement Services and the building principal. The Office of Student Achievement Services will notify the Office of Human Resources of student nurse placements in the District as they occur.
- B. The Office of Student Achievement Services shall solicit volunteers to accept the assignment of student nurses. Nurses shall not be compensated for this assignment by the District.

Split from Policy 4708.

Revised: June 25, 1999 Adopted: June 25, 1999 Effective: July 1, 1999

### School Nurse Evaluation Procedure, Policy 4737

- A. The mission of Cherry Creek School district is to "inspire every student to think, to learn, to achieve, to care." The Board of Education views personnel evaluation as an integral part of assuring that every employee's performance supports and advances the educational goals of the District.
- B. The nurse evaluation process is established in order to:
  - a. Improve nursing practice;
  - b. Enhance the school health program;
  - c. Serve as a measure of performance for and of nurses;
  - d. Assist in managing the professional growth and development of nurses.
- C. The Board of Education and the Administration retain the right to take immediate and appropriate disciplinary action regarding any nurse violating state or federal law, school board policy or established protocols or procedures which action may be independent of this procedure or any element of it. It is also recognized that nurses new to the District serve a two year probation period during which the District may terminate a nurse whenever it is determined that such a separation would be in the best interests of the District in its sole judgment. Again this decision may be independent of determinations made through this procedure and need not be for just cause within the meaning of Policy 4735 nor is it subject to the grievance procedure of Policy 4736.

# **Criteria For Evaluation For School Nurses**

A. Criteria and Data Sources for Evaluation

There are four performance domains used for evaluation and improvement of nurse performance. The Nurse Evaluation Record describes the performance areas and lists the performance standards required to demonstrate satisfactory/proficient performance.

Any nurse performance area evaluated as unsatisfactory must be documented with reference to the evaluation criteria in the Nurse Evaluation Record.

If a nurse is in a unique position that requires different components for the evaluation, those components must be identified and explained to the Health Services Coordinator (HSC) and the nurse being evaluated prior to the initiation of the evaluation process.

Data sources for evaluation reports include direct observation, records review, reports and multiple measures of student and clinic outcomes and may include but are not limited to the following:

- Discussions/conferences with nurse
- Participation in committee, staff, and staffing meetings
- Parent, student, and/or peer feedback
- Physical appearance of the clinic
- Review of assessment tools/measures
- Documentation of professional growth experiences

- Documentation of policy/procedure compliance
- Nursing observation and analysis done by the District Health Services Coordinator (or designee)

### B. <u>Performance Domains</u>

### 1. Performance Domain: Preparation and Planning

The comprehensive knowledge required for a nurse to incorporate medical and developmental needs in designing and carrying out plans for the program, including building safety.

- a. Demonstrating knowledge of medical standards, skill in nursing techniques and of CDE role requirements;
- b. Preparing for emergency situations;
- c. Demonstrating knowledge of child and adolescent development;
- d. Establishing goals for the nursing program appropriate to the setting and the students served.

### 2. Performance Domain: The Environment

The physical, organizational, social and interpersonal components that the school nurse utilizes in order to facilitate optimal health for all students.

- a. Organizing physical space;
- b. Supervising delegates;
- c. Creating an environment of respect and rapport;
- d. Demonstrating sensitivity to cultural and socioeconomic influence;
- e. Establishing a culture for health and wellness.
- 3. Performance Domain: Delivery of Health Services The nurses' skill in utilizing a

wide range of strategies that effectively remove acute and chronic health obstacles to learning.

- a. Implementing nursing process to address the student need;
- b. Managing clinic visits, medication administration and nursing treatments to students;
- c. Promoting wellness through health screenings;
- d. Collaborating to develop accommodations, modifications and services for students with diverse health needs;
- e. Advocating for students.
- 4. Performance Domain: Professional Responsibilities

The nurse's professional responsibilities, include communication with parents and the school community, self-assessment and reflection, participation in ongoing professional development, and contributions to the school and District environment.

- a. Maintaining health records in accordance with policy and submitting reports in a timely fashion;
- b. Following Nurse Practice Act and District Protocols;
- c. Communicating with families;
- d. Participating in the professional community;
- e. Reflecting on practice;
- f. Perception of effectiveness in maintaining a calm, safe and healthy environment;
- g. Engaging in professional development.

# Part Two - Evaluation Process

# 1. Definitions

The following definitions shall be used for purposes of clarity in this policy only: "Evaluator" - The term "evaluator" refers to those individuals who hold a proper Colorado administrative license and have received training in the District's nurse evaluation process.

"Probationary Nurse" - Is defined as a nurse who has not completed two full years of continuous employment with the Cherry Creek School District and who has not been reemployed for the third year per provisions of Policy 4710.

"Nurse" - Is defined as any person who falls within the definition of school nurse in Policy 4708.

"Performance Domain" - Is a distinct aspect of the school nurse's role or realm of activities identified which forms a basis for the evaluation of a nurse. "Unsatisfactory Performance" - For purposes of this policy, "unsatisfactory performance" shall be defined as fifty percent (50%) or more of the components within at least one of the four domains being rated unsatisfactory.

# A. <u>Procedure for Evaluation</u>

All licensed nurses are evaluated according to the following procedures:

- 1. **Nurses to be evaluated.** During both of the first two (2) years of employment, the District will evaluate every first and second year nurse (i.e., probationary nurses). Non-probationary nurses must be evaluated at least once every three years. The evaluator or a nurse may initiate a formal evaluation of the nurse anytime with notice.
- 2. **Notification of nurses and evaluators.** The Health Services Coordinator will identify the nurses to be evaluated each year and inform the nurses selected as well as the Office of Human Resources. Human Resources will in turn notify the evaluators of those nurses. Each nurse will be assigned to an identified evaluator. In those cases where a nurse is assigned to more than one facility, the Office of Human Resources will identify the administrator who will be responsible for the evaluation of the nurse. In addition, input into the final report shall be provided by an evaluator from each facility where the nurse is assigned.

- 3. **Initiating the Process.** The nurse evaluation process will commence within the first 30 workdays of the nurse's work year with an explanation of the evaluation process designed to create a common understanding of the nurse evaluation process among the nurse, the evaluator/s and the Health Services Coordinator. This may be structured as an initial in person conference or a number of communications including video conference via DVD, internet or the like supported by phone conference, email or like methods. The conference may include the option of a live conference with two way communication or recorded material with options for answering questions or providing other necessary follow-up. This communication should include the following:
  - i. Explanation of the evaluation process including the domains and components in the final evaluation document
  - ii. A review or list of documents to be used in the evaluation
  - iii. Explanation of the Clinic Criteria form (for first year nurses) and the Nurse Evaluation Record iv. Identify supporting documents or artifacts that will or may be used in the process
  - v. Method for getting answers to questions or concerns.
- 4. **Probationary Nurses.** Nurses in their first year of service in Cherry Creek Schools will be evaluated only on the essential components identified on the Nurse Evaluation Record (Standard Plan, see below). These essential elements have been aligned with the topics covered in the nurse orientation process handled by nurse mentors which utilizes the Clinic Criteria Form mentioned above.

After the first year probationary nurses will be evaluated on all components covered in the Nurse Evaluation Record (Standard Plan). Observations made by the District nurse mentors during the nurse orientation process shall not be used in nurse performance evaluations. To ensure that the nurse-mentor relationship retains the necessary degree of trust and that nurses are provided an environment conducive to open communication and hence improvement from mentor assistance, mentoring observation records will be kept separate from performance evaluation records.

### 5. Evaluation Plans For Probationary and Non-probationary Nurses:

Note: Please see Memorandum of Understanding title "Evaluations of Satisfactorily Performing: a) Non-Probationary Teachers, b) Non-Probationary Nurses and c) Mental Health Employees With More Than Two Years of Experience in the District.

- i. Plan 1 Standard Plan. The rubric based evaluation plan which provides a list of domains and components on which a nurse is evaluated is the Standard Evaluation model for nurses. The plan is required to be used for first and second year nurses and may be used for non-probationary.
- Plan 2 Goal Setting Plan. The Plan 2 process is intended as an alternative to the Standard Plan for satisfactorily performing nurses. It is not intended to be an addition to the comprehensive process of Plan 1. Within this Plan the nurse, the evaluator and the HSC should collaboratively develop a professional goal and supporting action plans designed to improve the

delivery of health services and/or the professional development of the nurse. This plan culminates with a self-evaluation of the success of the plan, an evaluator's analysis and summary, and a plan for growth or improvement when applicable.

# 6. The Nurse will be responsible for:

- Reading and becoming knowledgeable of the School Nurse Performance Evaluation Procedure as described in this policy,
- conferring with the principal or designee(s) and the HSC regarding the evaluation process and report,
- developing and implementing strategies to improve performance areas identified during conferences and/or within the evaluation report/s, and contacting the Health Services Coordinator for support as needed.

# 7. The evaluator and the Health Services Coordinator will be responsible for:

- Engaging in ongoing conversations with nurses regarding both positive performance as well as concerns since the summative evaluation report and its process should not be the first place concerns about the nurse's performance are raised,
- implementing the individual nurse evaluation plan (Plan 1 or Plan 2),
- supervising the evaluation process,
- identifying performance areas needing improvement when necessary and giving specific recommendations for improvement, and
- ensuring the contents of evaluation reports are an accurate reflection of the nurse's performance.
- 8. **Interim Feedback.** Recognizing the value of timely feedback, the evaluator and/or the Health Services Coordinator will identify a number of high priority performance components on which the nurse's performance will be assessed during the first half of the year. The HSC and/or the evaluator will provide initial feedback regarding the nurse's performance on these components by the end of January. The initial feedback shall be provided in writing on the Nurse Evaluation Record, the Clinic Criteria Form

(first year only), or other document. The HSC and evaluator will be available to discuss this feedback and answer any questions or concerns in a timely manner.

- 9. **Final Evaluation Report.** The final evaluation report is due to, and must be submitted to Health Services and Human Resources fully completed and signed (or acknowledged) by May 15. At least five (5) work days prior to the submission deadline the evaluator must provide a draft evaluation report to the nurse and be available for conference or discussion to clarify any questions or concerns. The content of the final evaluation report must have been presented to and reviewed with the nurse prior to submission.
- 10. Nurse evaluation reports must be signed by a properly licensed and trained administrator as well as the nurse. The nurse's signature will indicate that the

information was received; it will not necessarily indicate the nurse's agreement with the contents of the report in whole or in part. The evaluator will provide a copy (hard copy or electronic) of the final evaluation report to the nurse, the office of Student Achievement Services for review and to the Office of Human Resources where it will be placed in the nurse's personnel file.

- 11. Nurses who wish to respond to the evaluation report may do so by providing a written copy of the response to the evaluator and the Office of Human Resources, where it will be placed in the nurse's personnel file.
- 12. The process of conducting evaluations shall be handled so as to observe the legal and constitutional rights of the nurse. No evaluation information shall be gathered by electronic devices, such as remote-video microphones, cameras or recorders, without the consent of the nurse.
- 13. One element of professional evaluation is setting goals. Therefore, a part of the evaluation process shall include the nurse and evaluator jointly agreeing to one or more goals annually. Such goal-setting should occur in relation to the nurse's professional development, growth/improvement plans, as well as building or District health or safety initiatives, themes or priorities. Nurses and evaluators are encouraged to harmonize and align goals based on these various sources.
- 14. The evaluator must complete the Nurse Evaluation Record prior to recommending that a nurse be moved from the evaluation process to the Improvement Plan process. The evaluator must follow up such recommendation by informing the principal (if applicable) who shall inform the principal's supervisor and the Offices of Student Achievement Services and Human Resources of this recommendation.

### B. Process for Addressing Unsatisfactory Ratings

- 1. When the evaluator rates one or more components on a nurse's Nurse Evaluation Record to be unsatisfactory, the evaluator will develop a Goal for Improvement to address the area needing improvement. The evaluator may require that the nurse repeat the Standard Evaluation Plan I the following school year to ensure that component(s) needing improvement are addressed and that the nurse does indeed improve in the targeted component(s).
- 2. If the evaluator determines that the nurse's performance is unsatisfactory, the principal or site administrator will contact the HSC to collaboratively develop an Improvement Plan for the nurse. This plan will specifically address those components that are deemed unsatisfactory, include correlating support resources, and specify a reasonable timeline for implementation not less than thirty (30) working days. When the plan is finalized, the nurse will repeat the Standard Evaluation Plan I over the following ninety (90) day period.
- 3. At the end of the ninety (90) day implementation of the Standard Evaluation Plan I, if the principal or site administrator does not observe satisfactory performance in the targeted components, the principal or site administrator will confer with Human

Resources to determine a course of action. If the principal or site administrator determines that performance in the targeted areas is satisfactory, the nurse will return to the normal evaluation cycle.

<u>Nurse Evaluation System</u>: The forms herein have been jointly agreed to by the Board of Education and the Cherry Creek Education Association.

Revised: May 16, 2012 Adopted: August 13, 2012 Effective: July 1, 2012

# Appraisal Procedures, Administrative Procedure 4737.1

- 1. The nurse and the building administrator will schedule an initial conference within the first six weeks of the year to review the performance responsibilities of the nurse.
- 2. Formal and/or informal observations may be used by the building administrator to appraise these performance responsibilities.
- 3. Written and/or verbal feedback should be given to the nurse about the observations.
- 4. First-year nurses will be appraised two times during their first year of employment, all others will be appraised once per year.

Approved: Superintendent Robert D. Tschirki, September 16, 1991

# Nurse Evaluation: Memorandum of Understanding

# Policy 4737

The Cherry Creek School District Board of Education may adopt the new state model evaluation tool/rubric to be used beginning school year 2014 - 2015. If it does, the parties agree that Policy 4737, Administrative Procedure 4737.1, and any other MOU, policy, or procedure related to Nurse evaluation will be suspended to the extent that they conflict with the adopted evaluation tool/rubric. The parties further agree to the following if the Board adopts a new evaluation system:

- 1. The parties agree to work together to incorporate into any new evaluation system portions of Policy 4737, et al. that are consistent with the new evaluation procedures and related forms.
- 2. Each party agrees to engage in regular communications regarding the evaluation process and its implementation. Such regular communication shall be conducted through the Superintendent and CCEA President, or their designees.
- 3. The parties agree that procedures for the new evaluation system, including existing Policy 4737, shall be the subject of negotiations during the 2017-2018 school year.

Revised: May 25, 2017 Adopted: June 12, 2017 Effective: July 1, 2017

# Site-Based Management Model, Memorandum of Understanding

# I. <u>Purpose</u>

In an effort to improve and support student learning and achievement, each site, which directly serves students, will develop a written site-based management model.

In order to achieve the purpose above, this memorandum of understanding is intended to:

- 1. Clarify the decision-making process at each site.
- 2. Invest people in site decisions.
- 3. Empower people to participate in site decisions.
- 4. Allow for on-site resolution of site concerns.

# II. <u>Model</u>

The site-based management model developed at each site must address the participants in the model, the structure through which the site reaches shared decisions, and the levels of involvement in the model. These elements must be developed and implemented during the 95-96 school year.

- A. <u>PARTICIPANTS in the model shall include but not be limited to:</u>
  - 1. Parent/Community
  - 2. Staff/Teachers
  - 3. Students
  - 4. Administrators
- B. This STRUCTURE should recognize the importance of empowering people in the decision-making process while recognizing the responsibility of the principal as the final decision-making authority.

The components of this structure shall include but not be limited to:

- 1. How committee or other structures are determined.
- 2. How frequently meetings occur.
- 3. How topics are introduced and studied.
- 4. How decisions are reached.
- 5. How dissenting opinions are addressed.
- 6. How information is shared.
- C. The LEVELS OF INVOLVEMENT in the model would describe the opportunities and options individuals would have for participating in a given decision-making process.

An example of these levels might include but are not limited to:

1. <u>Accountability - Decision-making</u>:

"I want to serve on a decision-making committee."

- 2. <u>Responsibility Taking action</u>: "I will attend sessions to initiate input."
- <u>Consultation Asking for opinions</u>:
  "I want to get information from the group and respond."
- 4. <u>Information Hearing-about decision</u>:"I want to know when the decision is made and I will comply."

### III. <u>Topics/Issues</u>

The TOPICS/ISSUES to be brought to the model shall include but not be limited to:

1.Structure and use of planning time

2.Class sizes/loads

3.Staffing design building-wide (by level, by team, or by department)

4.An annual review of site committee structure

5.Site issues related to special education inclusion

6.Site staff development (including the use of non-contact days)

### IV. Procedural Considerations

- A. The site-based management model developed will be disseminated in written form throughout the site community.
- B. No appeals or waivers of District policy shall be considered for the term of this memorandum of understanding.
- C. The CCEA and the Division of Performance Improvement or District designee will address concerns about whether or not the site-based management model is in use. Written concerns about whether or not the site-based management model is in use may be directed to the Superintendent or CCEA President.

This memorandum of understanding will be reviewed by June 30, 2020, and may be continued by mutual agreement of the parties.

Revised: May 25, 2017 Adopted: June 12, 2017 Effective: July 1, 2017

# Compensation, Benefit, and Leave Information

# Nurses Salary Schedule, Policy 4741

# A. Initial Salary Placement

- 1. Nurses shall be placed on the salary schedule according to their level of education attainment and years of experience as paid during the 2001-2002 school year or substantiated through proof of years earned and/or education attained.
- 2. Effective July 1, 2002, the Human Resources Department will recognize verified previous nursing experience and the nurse will advance one (1) vertical step on the salary schedule for each year of recognized service, up to a maximum of five (5) steps, i.e., placement up to step six (6) on the salary schedule in the appropriate educational column.
- 3. The salary schedule will recognize previous nursing experience provided the nursing experience meets one or both of the following conditions:
  - a. If the experience occurred (is) in a public school the following applies:
    - i. The nursing experience must have occurred while the nurse held a valid nursing certificate/license issued by that state.
    - ii. One (1) full semester or more for four (4) or more hours per day will be considered as one (1) year of out-of-District experience.
  - b. If the experience is in non-public schools and/or a clinical setting, the following applies:
    - i. Six (6) months or more of full time experience during a twelve (12) month period will be considered as one (1) year of out-of-District experience.
- 4. New employees will be given credit for the highest degree earned that is recognized by the salary schedule. Additional educational credits must be earned after attainment of registered nurse licensure and be verified through transcripts or similar documentation.
- 5. Returning Former Nurses.

a. If a nurse resigns from the District and is re-employed within four (4) years, the nurse will be given full credit for in-District experience and full credit for out-ofdistrict experience up to the limits of this policy (A)(2)(3) above and commensurate with the nurse's educational attainment.

### B. <u>In-District Credit</u>

The salary schedule will grant vertical movement upon completion of each successful year of nursing experience. Vertical increases are not automatic, but are awarded on the basis of successful experience only for each school year as interpreted, evaluated, and administered by the Office of the Superintendent.

One year of In-District experience will be granted for nurses who work four or more hours per day either for a full semester or fifty percent (50%) or more of the regular contract as defined in Policy 4716.

### C. Horizontal Movement on the Salary Schedule

Credit for contact hours or college credits will be submitted to Human Resources for credit on the salary schedule. Changes in salary will be effective the day the forms and documentation were received in the Office of Human Resources. Contact hours or college credit must be accumulated in an amount that equates to advancement on the salary schedule before being submitted to Human Resources.

Conversion to semester hours, as recognized on the schedule, is in accordance with the table below:

One (1) semester hour = fifteen (15) contact hours

One (1) CDE equivalent to a semester hour = fifteen (15) contact hours

One & one-half  $(1^{1}/_{2})$  CEU equivalent to a semester hour = ten (10) contact hours

### D. <u>Annual Salary</u>

The annual salary for each nurse will be computed by adding the daily per diem salary approved for each of the contract days on which the nurse is scheduled to work. The per diem rate is computed by dividing the appropriate annual salary as shown on the salary schedule by 185 days.

### 2020-2021 New Hires, Memorandum of Understanding

All teachers, mental health professionals, and nurses hired for employment by the district to begin in the 2020-2021 school year shall be granted the appropriate years of experience minus one (1) year for initial placement on the Salary Schedule as outlined in Policy 4141.2.D. For example, if a teacher were granted five (5) years of experience credit, the teacher shall be placed on step five (5) on the Salary Schedule effective July 1, 2020.

Adopted: July 20, 2020 Effective: July 1, 2020

Salary	BA	BA +15	BA +30	MA	MA +15	MA +30	MA +45	MA +60	MA +75
Step 1	1.00	1.05	1.10	1.12	1.17	1.22	1.27	1.32	1.34
-	\$41,845	\$43,938	\$46,030	\$46,867	\$48,960	\$51,051	\$53,144	\$55,236	\$56,073
2	1.00	1.05	1.10	1.12	1.17	1.22	1.27	1.32	1.34
-	\$43,349	\$45,516	\$47,683	\$48,550	\$50,717	\$52,884	\$55,052	\$57,218	\$58,087
3	1.00	1.05	1.10	1.12	1.17	1.22	1.27	1.32	1.34
5	\$45,032	\$47,282	\$49,534	\$50,435	\$52,686	\$54,937	\$57,190	\$59,441	\$60,341
4	1.00	1.05	1.10	1.12	1.17	1.22	1.27	1.32	1.34
-									
	\$46,122	\$48,429	\$50,734	\$51,656	\$53,963	\$56,269	\$58,575	\$60,880	\$61,804
5	1.08	1.13	1.18	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.42
	\$49,812	\$52,118	\$54,425	\$55,346	\$57,652	\$59,959	\$62,265	\$64,570	\$65,493
6	1.16	1.21	1.26	1.28	1.33	1.38	1.43	1.48	1.50
	\$53,501	\$55,808	\$58,114	\$59,036	\$61,342	\$63,648	\$65,955	\$68,259	\$69,183
7	1.24	1.29	1.34	1.36	1.41	1.46	1.51	1.56	1.58
	\$57,191	\$59,497	\$61,804	\$62,725	\$65,032	\$67,338	\$69,644	\$71,952	\$72,872
8	1.31	1.36	1.41	1.43	1.48	1.53	1.58	1.63	1.65
	\$60,421	\$62,725	\$65,032	\$65,955	\$68,259	\$70,566	\$72,872	\$75,179	\$76,101
9	1.38	1.43	1.48	1.50	1.55	1.60	1.65	1.70	1.72
	\$63,648	\$65,955	\$68,259	\$69,183	\$71,489	\$73,796	\$76,101	\$78,407	\$79,330
10	1.42	1.49	1.54	1.56	1.61	1.66	1.71	1.76	1.78
	\$65,493	\$68,721	\$71,028	\$71,952	\$74,255	\$76,562	\$78,868	\$81,175	\$82,097
11		1.53	1.60	1.62	1.67	1.72	1.77	1.82	1.84
		\$70,566	\$73,796	\$74,717	\$77,024	\$79,330	\$81,636	\$83,942	\$84,864

# Salary Schedule (Annual Salary for 185 Days) July 2019 through June 2020 Level of Training

12			1.64	1.68	1.73	1.78	1.83	1.88	1.90
			\$75,640	\$77,485q	\$79,791	\$82,097	\$84,403	\$86,709	\$87,631
13				1.72	1.79	1.84	1.89	1.94	1.96
				\$79,330	\$82,558	\$84,864	\$87,171	\$89,476	\$90,399
14					1.83	1.90	1.95	2.00	2.02
					\$84,403	\$87,631	\$89,938	\$92,243	\$93,167
15						1.94	1.99	2.04	2.06
						\$89,476	\$91,783	\$94,088	\$95,012
Maximum	\$65,493	\$70,566	\$75,640	\$79,330	\$84,403	\$89,476	\$91,783	\$94,088	\$95,012

### Rounded to the nearest dollar

# Years of Service in CCSDLongevity Payment15\$250.0016\$250.0017\$250.0018\$250.0019\$250.0020 or more years\$500.00

# **Longevity Schedule**

# E. Additional Pay for Additional Responsibilities

Additional pay will be approved for additional responsibilities, which exceed the normal job requirement and/or hours. Pay requests for such additional activities must be approved by the building principal or Student Achievement Services before such an activity has taken place.

Nurses will be eligible to receive supplementary pay as outlined in Teacher Policy 4142 and/or Responsibility Factor pay as outlined in Teacher Policy 4141. All criteria (as applicable) must be followed.

### F. Longevity Schedule

A nurse becomes eligible for longevity payments after being employed by the District as a nurse for fourteen (14) years. At the end of the fifteenth  $(15^{th})$  year of service, the nurse shall receive longevity pay in a lump sum according to the schedule shown on the bottom of the salary schedule.

- G. <u>Pay Cycles</u>
  - 1. All nurses employed as of July 1, 2015, will be paid from August through July in twelve (12) monthly installments. This cycle shall remain consistent for the teacher's career in the District.
  - 2. All nurses entering the District in their first year shall be offered the option to have their annual salary divided over thirteen (13) months provided they work at least fifteen (15) contract days in the month of their first payment. At the end of the nurse's first year of employment, the teacher shall be paid from August through July.

With the exception of those nurses in their first year of employment in the District who choose the preceding option, all nurses will be paid the same annualized salary based on their Salary Schedule placement in twelve (12) monthly installments.

Revised: May 16, 2019 Adopted: September 9, 2019 Effective: July 1, 2019

# 2020-2021 Teacher Compensation, Memorandum of Understanding

Since so much remains unknown about the School Finance Act and its funding of K-12 schools in Colorado for the 2020-2021 school year, and because the District has declared a local disaster emergency to deal with the COVID-19 pandemic, the Association and District agree to the following:

Teachers, Mental Health, Nurses will remain at their current step and lane (as of June 30, 2020), for the 2020-2021 school year. Horizontal advancement requests will be accepted by the Office of Human Resources through September 1, 2020. Any requests received September 2, 2020, or later will not be honored.

The following compensation items will remain in place:

- Longevity Schedule
- .5% Compensation for Additional Responsibilities
- Environmental Education Overnight Supervision
- Mentor Teacher Pay
- Compensation for Substitution
- Curriculum Development
- Payment for National Board for Professional Teaching Standards Certification

The following additional compensation items will continue for employees who received or participated in the following during the 2019-2020 school year:

- 105% plans (Existing plans will continue to be paid pending adequate completion; however, no new plans will be approved for any employees)
- Maximum Salary Increase: \$99.75/month
- Maximum Salary Increase: 2%/month
- Project Pay (Mental Health)

For employees who have attained or maintained eligibility, the following additional compensation items will be reexamined for the 2020-2021 school year and applications accepted once a determination is made on suitability and viability in a remote learning or blended learning environment:

- SAIP
- Supplementary Pay
- Extended Contracts
- Responsibility Factor Pay

A sub-committee made up of three (3) members from both bargaining teams shall reconvene no later than July 31, 2020, to examine the actual costs and savings associated with compensation based on the negotiated agreement and the revenue generated by the School Finance Act.

The sub-committee shall examine the following aspects of salary and benefits in an attempt to determine any gains or losses associated with the School Finance Act and/or other sources of revenue for the District because of the COVID-19 pandemic: the costs of honoring Horizontal Advancement beyond September 1, the costs and savings associated with the new benefits structure, the costs and savings of Supplementary Pay, the costs of all forms of additional compensation, and the savings associated with potential furlough days in the 2020-2021 school year.

The sub-committee shall also examine how any decisions made about beginning the 2020-2021 school year, either with remote or blended learning, will impact previously negotiated policies.

Adopted: July 20, 2020 Effective: July 1, 2020

# Substitute Nurses Compensation, Administrative Procedure 4722.1

# For Multiple Days in the Same Assignment

- A. A Substitute nurse working ten consecutive days or fewer in the same assignment shall be compensated at the substitute rate of pay.
- B. A Substitute nurse working more than ten consecutive days in the same assignment or a substitute nurse contracted to work more than ten days for the purpose of completing the school calendar for a nurse in a year-round assignment shall be compensated at the minimum per diem for nurses as covered in Policy 4741.
- C. A substitute nurse working ninety (90) or more days in the same assignment shall be contracted as a "school nurse" as defined in Policy 4708 and paid according to Policy 4741.
  Approved: Superintendent, Robert D. Tschirki, June 9, 1997

# Professional Growth, Policy 4730

A. Nurses will be encouraged to pursue professional growth activities which enhance the competence and performance of school nurses.

Funds for professional growth activities may be included in building budgets.

Nurses may be consulted for their professional growth needs in the development of the building budget.

- B. A professional growth fund of \$8,000 per year will be available for professional growth activities of individual nurses which may include tuition, workshop fees, and expenses. Application for use of such funds will be made to the Nurse Professional Growth Committee. Any funds remaining at the end of the school year may, at the discretion of the Executive Director of Student Achievement Services or designee, be used to purchase educational materials for use by all district nurses.
- C. The District will provide in-services each year which will qualify for contact hours credit.
- D. Nurses may be surveyed annually for their needs and suggestions for any in-service offered by the District.

Revised: August 14, 2006 Adopted: August 14, 2006 Effective: July 1, 2006

# Professional Growth Procedures, Policy 4730.1

# A. <u>Professional Growth - Goals/Aims</u> This

Procedure is designed to:

1. Encourage nurses to pursue professional growth activities which enhance the competence and performance of school nurses.

- 2. Stimulate learning and encourage nurses to upgrade their skills, gain new skills or refine techniques to enable them to prepare for increased responsibilities, and provide better health care.
- 3. Assist nurses with the cost of professional growth experiences that relate to school nurse job descriptions.
- 4. Maximize funds to provide the greatest benefit to all school nurses.

### B. <u>Professional Growth – Procedures</u>

### 1. Nurse Professional Growth Committee

- a. A Nurse Professional Growth Committee (NPGC) will be formed to oversee the approval of applications and disbursement of funds as identified in Policy 4730.
- b. The NPGC will consist of three (3) nurses of the Cherry Creek Nurses' Education Association (CCNEA). A Chairman will be selected from the committee to coordinate duties as required. A representative of Student Achievement Services will assist the members of the committee as a voting member.

### 2. Application Process - Individual Nurse

- a. A nurse may apply for professional growth funds at any time during the school year (July 1 June 30).
- b. To be eligible for payment, the professional growth activity must meet the goals/aims listed above.
- c. An application form (Administrative Procedure 4730.2) must be completed before any request for payment can be considered. The application form should be sent to the CCNEA NPGC, c/o Student Achievement Services ESC.
- d. If you have completed the Professional Growth Activity: Nurses are required to provide an application including prior approval, verification of expenses, and evidence of satisfactory completion of any and all work before any payment may be granted.
- e. If you are applying for funds before you have completed the activity:
  - 1. You are required to provide an application and a description of the professional growth activity.
  - 2. Failure to satisfactorily complete any professional growth experience will require reimbursement to the Professional Growth Fund of all monies previously advanced.
- f. Prior to application, activities that occur during normal work hours must have approval of the nurse's immediate supervisor (school principal) and the Office of Student Achievement Services.

- g. A nurse may not receive more than \$300.00 in any given school year. However, if funds are available in the professional growth fund after all other applications are considered at the May NPGC meeting, the NPGC Committee may provide for professional growth expenses beyond that individual limit. Such unexpended funds shall be distributed on a pro-rata basis (e.g., if 50% of the requested money is available, each individual would receive 50% of expenditures). Funds remaining after this process has been utilized shall be considered under Policy 4130-B.
- 3. <u>Approval Process Committee</u>
  - a. The committee will review all applications monthly which are submitted by the end of each month.
  - b. The NPGC Chairman and Student Achievement Services will determine a meeting place and time for the purpose of considering professional growth requests.
  - c. The NPGC will respond to all requests in its function as defined in B-1-a.
  - d. The NPGC may not grant more than three hundred dollars to a nurse in any school year for professional growth activities covered under this procedure except as noted in 2.g above.

### 4. Allocations of Funds - NPGC

Eight thousand dollars will be available yearly to the NPGC.

- 5. Funds may be allocated by the NPGC for tuition, workshop fees and expenses.
- 6. The NPGC will establish procedures for the operations of the committee. The NPGC will determine criteria for considering applications and communicate to nurses those criteria and the process for consideration of professional growth activities.
- 7. These procedures will be reviewed annually by the NPGC with recommendations for change forwarded to the Human Resources Department.

Approved: Superintendent, Robert D. Tschirki, June 25, 1999.

### Professional Growth Application, Administrative Procedure 4730.2

Name

School

Phone # (work)

SS# Name/Description of Activity

(Attach documentation, i.e. course description, etc.)					
Cost of tuition or workshop fees					
_	(Attach documentation showing costs, etc.)				
Dates of Professional Leave					
I verify that the day(s) I have designated for with the provisions of Policy 4751 for nurse	r use as Professional Leave will be used in accordance es.				
If activity is during school day, attendance	may be contingent on a substitute.				
Substitute will be needed yes	no				
If you have completed the professional grow payment and evidence of satisfactory comp	wth activity: Provide an application, verification of letion of all required work.				
	n a professional growth activity: Provide an ional growth activity. (for details see Procedure				
Please send your application to Student Ach	nievement Services/Health Services at ESC.				
Date Signature of	Applicant				
Date	Approval of Principal				
Committee Review					
Signature					
Date					
Approved by Superintendent, Robert D. Tso					
Effective: July 1, 1998					
Travel Reim	bursement, <i>Policy 4010</i>				

On the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board of Education shall authorize the payment of travelling expenses. Payment at the official District rate per mile shall be made for any employee or member of the Board of Education while conducting official District business. Claims for payment shall be made in the manner prescribed by the Superintendent acting in accordance with established State funding requirements.

Adopted: January 10, 1983 Effective: January 1, 1983

### Insurance Preamble, Memorandum of Understanding

Cherry Creek Schools and the Cherry Creek Education Association have a commitment to providing affordable medical and dental insurance to employees and their dependents. Both parties recognize that the previous benefit structure created the unintended consequence of diverting funding for premium increases to tax sheltered annuities. While access to tax sheltered annuities is an option, funding them should not be at the cost of meeting employees' fundamental needs for affordable benefits coverage.

In light of significant, nationwide cost increases, the District and the Association recognize that this benefit structure no longer meets the goal of providing a competitive level of benefits that will assure employees and their dependents heath care needs will be met. The District and the Association commit to addressing this concern by creating a new benefit framework that will meet the primary goal of ensuring quality, affordable insurance coverage.

# Insurance, Policy 4044

# 1. Insurance

The Board of Education supports the idea that employees should be insured against personal and professional risks and in this regard will cooperate with staff members or representatives thereof in the development and administration of such a program.

The Board of Education shall protect the staff and program against undue invasion of the school day by insurance agents by not allowing such agents to solicit employees during the school day. Principals shall not allow materials from solicitors to be placed in mail boxes of employees or in school areas where employees may assemble.

# 2. Insurance Committee

- a. The Insurance Benefits Committee shall be established by the Superintendent, composed of one representative of each employee group of the Cherry Creek School District. Each representative may be appointed or elected by a majority vote of these employees. The Committee shall be chaired by a representative of the Human Resources department and include a representative of Fiscal Services.
- b. This Committee is charged with the responsibility of making an annual review of the District approved employee insurance plan.
- c. Following this review, the Committee shall make the annual report to the

Superintendent. This report shall recommend retention of the existing program or appropriate changes.

d. The Committee shall have the responsibility to monitor insurance coverage problems and to make procedural recommendations.

Revised: August 11, 1997 Adopted: August 11, 1997 Effective: July 1, 1997

# Coordination and Collection of Insurance Premiums, Policy 4044.1

# **Employees on Unpaid Leave of Absence**

To make certain that <u>no</u> lapse in insurance coverage occurs when any eligible District employee is on approved unpaid Leave of Absence, the following procedure should be followed:

**A.** <u>Eligibility</u> All employees who are eligible for the District's insurance program according to Board policy will be eligible according to the Insurance Master Policies to purchase health coverage while on Leave of Absence.

### B. <u>Enrollment</u>

To continue participation while on leave, an employee must notify the Benefits Office of desired coverage(s).

### C. <u>Premiums</u>

Premiums for employees on leave shall be the current rates in effect.

### D. <u>Premium Collection</u>

- 1. Premiums shall be paid on a monthly basis and shall be paid to the Benefits Office.
- 2. Monthly billing statements will be sent to each employee who is on an approved unpaid leave of absence and who elects to continue their health coverage.

### E. <u>Termination of Coverage</u>

- 1. An employee on leave whose payment of premium is in arrears will be dropped from coverage and may not re-enroll without successfully completing the Insurance Master Policy requirements for re-enrollment.
- 2. The death of the employee on leave will cause termination of all coverages.
- 3. A voluntary withdrawal from participation in this plan shall terminate coverage for employees on leave.

Approved by Superintendent Robert D. Tschirki, June 24, 1998

### **Insurance Benefits**, *Policy* 4744

A. Insurance Equity for All

Cherry Creek Schools is committed to providing affordable and comprehensive health benefits to employees. Effective July 1, 2020, the District and negotiating groups have agreed to one shared cost rate system for full time employees (.6 FTE and above) regardless of step or employee classification.

This rate structure will also have part time (.5 FTE - .59 FTE) and dual employee options. The dual employee option is for full time employees whose spouse also works full time for the District. The shared cost rate structure will make the cost of coverage more equitable across

employee groups.

- B. District Healthcare Insurance Contributions
  - 1. The District will continue to contribute to the insurance premiums for all eligible employees for the medical plans (DHMO2500 and the HDHP6000), dental and vision. The District may offer other additional plans for employees such as healthcare reimbursement, dependent care reimbursement, supplemental life insurance, critical illness, accident, etc. The total funding provided by the District will not decrease from the amount provided in the 2020-2021 school year.
  - 2. Eligible employees will have the option of enrolling in the HDHP6000 and receiving dollars in the form of Health Savings Account contributions from the District. The District will fund the Health Savings Account contributions at the current level of \$3000 for individuals per year/\$6000 for family plans per year for 2020/2021 through 2022/2023.

The parties agree to form a committee for the purpose of crafting a comprehensive, coherent compensation philosophy for the enactment in the 2019-2020 school year. Such committee shall have an equal number of representatives from CCSD and CCEA. In crafting such philosophy, the committee will take into consideration Policy 4141 and 4144.

C. Supplemental Benefit Plan

Effective with the 2020-2021 school year, the Supplemental Benefit Plan will cease.

Employees who were eligible for benefits during the 2005 – 2006 school year and continuously thereafter who received Benefit Cafeteria Cashback dollars as additional compensation during June 2020 shall receive this same amount of monthly cash back in additional monthly pay until their separation from the District.

- D. Premium Deposit Account
  - 1. The District agrees to maintain a Premium Deposit Account (PDA) in order to provide a reserve of funds to mitigate future insurance premium increases for all employees.
  - 2. Expenditures

The District's insurance committee must approve all expenditures from the PDA under the following conditions:

- i. Expenditures from the PDA will only be used to increase the District Health Insurance Contribution.
- ii. Expenditures from the PDA may not be in excess of actual or reasonably projected funds.
- 3. Annual Reporting

The District will provide the Association with an accounting indicating the amount of money received from the PDA funding source identified (D)(3) above, all unspent or unused money allocated to the employee only under section (B) of policies 4744, 4144, and 4872 along with all unspent money allocated to employees for the purposes in section (C) of policies 4744, 4144, and 4872. Any expenditure of the PDA funds, as approved by the insurance committee and, the amount, if any, of any PDA funds carried over from year-to-year will also be reported to the Association.

PDA funds carried over from year-to-year will also be reported to the Association.

D. Life Insurance

The District will provide at no cost, a District-approved group term life insurance plan of \$50,000 for nurses working a 50% or greater assignment and who have been covered under the life insurance plan for thirty-six (36) consecutive months or less.

The District will provide at no cost, a District-approved group term life insurance plan of \$75,000 for nurses working a 50% or greater assignment and who have been covered under the life insurance plan for thirty-seven (37) consecutive months or more.

### E. Long Term Disability Insurance

The District will provide at no cost a District-approved long-term disability insurance for nurses working a 50% or greater contract.

F. Liability Insurance

The District will provide liability insurance coverage for all nurses while acting in an official employee capacity for the District.

Revised: May 11, 2020 Adopted: July 20, 2020 Effective: July 1, 2020

# Insurance Committee, *Memorandum of Understanding* May 17, 2001

The Cherry Creek School District and the Association as well as other employee groups maintain a District Insurance Committee to provide a mechanism to manage the District's Insurance plans for the benefit of all employees and the District. Effective with the 2001-02 school year, the District and the Cherry Creek Education Association agree to increase the Association's membership on the District Insurance Committee to three (3) teacher members to be appointed by the Association.

### Role and Responsibility of the Committee.

It is agreed by the parties that the District Insurance Committee will study and make recommendations to employee bargaining representatives, District Leadership, and the Board of Education concerning the health/medical plan, dental coverage, vision coverage, life insurance, and disability plans for District employees. The responsibility of the Committee shall extend to, and include consideration of such matters as:

- The selection of a consultant to advise the Committee and the District;
- The philosophy behind various benefit plans;
- Carriers to provide benefit coverage or services;
- The approval of requests for proposal or other bid documents and agreements necessary to put in place the enumerated benefit plans;
- Premium levels (District contributions are a matter reserved for negotiations with employee representatives);
- The use of Premium Deposit Account Funds;
- Communication with employees, employee representatives and District officials;

Other matters necessary to the efficient operation of the plans.

The Committee shall meet annually by no later than October 1 to develop its work plan and set a schedule to conduct its business for the year.

### Access to Information.

Recognizing that the Committee needs access to high quality information in order to properly carry out is function, the District commits to provide, or to arrange for the providing of data to the committee, the Association and District Leadership. The data is to be as current as possible given the practical constrains of obtaining information. The information to be provided will include data indicating levels of plan utilization, plan expensed, financial reserves, and other reasonably necessary information as the committee may reasonable request.

# Workers' Compensation, Policy 4012

As required by law, Cherry Creek School District carries Workers' Compensation insurance covering all employees of the District. Should an employee be injured while at work and the accident is within the scope and course of his/her employment, he/she is entitled to the benefits provided by the Workers' Compensation Law provided that such injury is reported to the employee's immediate supervisor as soon as practicable.

Information concerning the Colorado Workers' Compensation Law will be posted in each building.

Proposed: May 12, 1980 Adopted: June 9, 1980

# Workers' Compensation Claims Procedures, Policy 4012.1

The Cherry Creek School District is self insured through the Joint School Districts' Workers' Compensation Self Insurance Pool. An employee who sustains a work related injury or disease which is directly attributable to the employee's job, trade, occupation, or position may qualify for medical and/or wage loss benefits under the Colorado Workers' Compensation Act. Workers' Compensation claims are administered and adjusted by a third party administrator.

The purpose of the procedures is to establish the required reporting, time lines, and forms to be used for the reporting and handling of Workers' Compensation accidents.

# <u>PERFORMED</u> <u>ACTION</u>: <u>BY:</u>

Employee **Reporting Requirements** Injured employees must notify their supervisor within 48 hours after a work related injury. Written notice must be given by the injured employee to the Risk Management Department within four working days after the accident. The injured employee will assist the supervisor in completion of the First Report of Injury form. Medical Treatment Section CRS 8-404(5) of the Colorado Workers' Compensation Act allows the employer to select the physician(s) who treat injured employees. The injured employee will be examined by the nearest District nurse, providing a nurse is available. If further medical treatment is required, the District nurse or supervisor will issue the injured employee an Authorization Form for medical treatment at the District's designated medical providers: Concentra, 10355 E. Iliff Ave, Aurora, CO (303-755-4955) Concentra, 11877 E. Arapahoe Rd. Suite 100, Centennial, CO (303-7927368) Rocky Mountain Medical Group, 13650 E. Mississippi Ave., Suite 120, Aurora, CO (303-280-2882) Concentra – formerly U.S. Healthworks, 8200 E. Belleview, Suite 428C, Greenwood Village, CO (303-741-1166) Workwell Occupational Medicine, 2550 S. Parker, Road, Suite 150, Aurora, CO (720-512-4408)

# PERFORMED ACTION:

<u>BY:</u>

- The employee, after treatment, will return the Medical Status Report issued by the designated provider to their supervisor and assist in the completion of the First Report of Injury form.
- Emergency Care: In the event of a life or limb threatening situation, treatment should be sought from the nearest medical facility. However, the designated provider must be contacted and follow-up care must be directed by the designated physician.
- After Hours Care: In the event medical treatment is required for a

work related injury after the office hours of the designated clinics or on a weekend, the employee should go to the Emergency Room at Centennial Healthcare Plaza, 14200 East Arapahoe Road, Centennial, CO (303-699-3000).

# • <u>If an employee wishes to be treated by a physician other than</u> <u>those approved, they do so at their own expense.</u>

### Lost Time

- Any time off from work due to a work related injury must be authorized by a designated physician.
- In accordance with the Colorado Workers' Compensation Statute, an injured employee must be absent from work for three days before Workers' Compensation Wage Benefits begin. Employees may use up to three days of their accumulated sick leave for the first three days of absence due to a work related injury, and thereafter, receive Statutory Workers' Compensation Benefits which is 2/3 of the employee's average weekly wage, subject to a maximum figure, which is established and adjusted each year by statute.
- The injured employee must return a copy of the doctor's report to their supervisor after each doctor's visit. This report will give the prognosis and the date the employee must return for follow-up visits.
- It is the duty and the responsibility of the injured employee to keep his/her supervisor advised of their return to work status.
- Medical Treatment

BuildingEmergency Care: You should seek medical or emergency care for the<br/>injured worker at the nearest medical facility.Supervisor or the Nurse

# PERFORMED ACTION:

# <u>BY:</u>

### Non-Emergency Care

If medical treatment is required beyond first aid rendered by the school nurse, the building administrator, supervisor or nurse should complete the Designated Physician's Authorization Form for the employee. Direct or take the injured employee to the nearest designated provider facility. <u>Reporting Requirements</u>

- Give the injured employee the Cherry Creek Schools' Information Document on the District's Workers' Compensation Program.
- Forward the following to the Risk Management Department along with the physician's report on the injured employee:
  - 1. Completed Workers' Compensation Employee Status Report
  - 2. The Employer's First Report of Injury Form

This must be forwarded to the Risk Management Department within <u>four</u> calendar days of the occurrence. Note: The injured employee should not complete the Employer's First Report of Injury, but should assist in completion of the form.

- Advise the injured worker that written notice must be delivered to the Risk Management Department within <u>four</u> working days of the accident.
- Investigate the claim and complete a Supervisor's Workers' Compensation Claim Follow-up Report and forward to the Risk Management Department.

If the supervisor feels the claim is not valid, the Risk Management Department should be notified of the fact and the supervisor will submit a written statement verifying why he/she feels the claim should not be honored.

• Note: All fatalities and any accident involving three (3) or more employees must be reported immediately by telephone to the Risk Management Office at (720) 554-4643.

# PERFORMED ACTION:

# <u>BY:</u>

The supervisor will work closely with the Risk Management Department on the following:

- 1. Exact amount of time lost due to the injury.
- 2. Exact date employee returns to work.
- 3. If sick leave is being used for the first three days absence.
- 4. Furnish completed employee status reports after each follow up visit by the injured employee to the designated provider.
- 5. Restricted light duty available for the return to work of employees that have been released by the designated physician with restrictions.

### **Hearings**

The supervisor will attend hearings and cooperate with the District's Workers' Compensation insurer on the handling and adjudication of Workers' Compensation Claims.

### Risk <u>Reporting</u>

Management Written notice of accidents received from injured employees will be date stamped. Copies of the written notice will be made available to the injured employee within two working days following receipt of the notice. The Risk Management Office will forward the First Report of Injury form, medical reports, medical bills and supervisor follow-up reports to the District's Workers' Compensation Insurer within eight days of the injury.

### <u>Claims</u>

The Risk Management Office will coordinate the claims with the insurer, injured employee, designated provider, Human Resources and the supervisor. Workers' Compensation master files and records will be maintained in the Risk Management Office.

Revised: August 1, 2017

Effective: July 1, 2017

# First Report of Injury, Administrative Procedure 4012.2

Employee's name (First, Middl			DISTRICT #5 EN		Male	Employee's home		122224
contraduce a server (r use, second	r raint	campacy	here and a		G Female	( )	Private a	
Employee's street address		26		City		State	Zip code	1
Marital status Employmen Marital status Disploymen Marital Disployment Single Disployment Separated Diober	mied a Fell time gle a Part time			# Of hours worked per day				
	vee began Inig	ev time	Last day worked	111111111	ployer notified		can Date ret	urned to work
// workoamoam		1 1		1 1	1 1	1 1		
Sirth Date of Hire	2 93343367	tial Evaluation:						
Did the injury occur on premise Name of Bldg, where Injury Oc		Yes		II None		ck One) School Minor on-s Emergency room	ite o Hospital	
iames of Witnesses to the Inju-	ry/Illness:		12 1000				C Hospital	
Name:								
Please answer the following q 1. Have you had a Work Comp 2. Dot this accident aggrevate a 3. Have you been injured on the 4. Was the employee wearing a 5. Did the employee fail to use	Injury that involve previous injury? : job before? ppropriate shoes?	ed this body part	a		No No	Yes Yes Yes Yes		
What was the employee doing a	ED IN DETAIL							
What object or substance harms What body parts are affected?	it the time of injur d the employee?	iy?I do no	it want to seek medici	ai treatment	at this time.			
What object or substance harms What body parts are affected?	it the time of injur d the employee?	iy?I do no		ai treatment	at this time.			
What object or substance harms What body parts are affected?	it the time of injur d the employee?	ido na mark in the bax iow ny, MD dvey, DO we Rd 0015 im-10 pm -8pm	it want to seek medici	ai treatment ated Provide ntain oup naswamy, MD 3.0. upi Ave Suite 1 usissippi)	at this time.	to see if seeking treats & Health Works edical Group Nelson, MD		vell al Medicine Rd, Suite 159 014
What object or substance harms What body parts are affected?	at the time of injur ed the employee? ase put a check of Care N Dr. Steven Ra Sharon McKe S420 S. Parke Aurora, CO 8 720-446-5893 Weekdeys 8 at Saturday 8am-S	ido na mark in the bax iow sy, MD dvey, DO w Rd 0015 im-10 pm -8pm Spm	t want to seek medic below for the Design Rocky Mou Medical Gr Dr. Anna Ran Dr. Brian Beatty, C 13650 E. Mississip Aurora, CO 80012 (Near 1-225 & Mis	ai treatment ated Provide naswany, ME 2 O. pi Ave Suite sissippi) en – Spin	at this time.	to see if seeking treats is Health Works offical Group Nelson, MD si, MD Malmgren PA Belleview P423C ood Village, CO 80111 11-1166 -25 & Belleview) - Friday 8am-Spm	Workw Occupations Dr. Wats 2550 S. Packe Aurora, Co 80 720-512-4408	vell al Medicine Rd, Suite 15 014
What object or substance harms What body parts are affected? Plea Concentra Dr. Diane Adams, DO 10355 E. Biff Ave Autoras, Co. 80247 303-755-4955 Monday-Friday Ram-5pm -OR- Dr. Carrie Burns, MD 11877 E. Aspahoe Rd Stel00 Cestennial, Co. 80112 303-792-7368 Monday-Friday Ram-6pn	I the time of injur d the employee? Ise put a check r Care N Care N Dr. Steven Ra Sharon McKe S620 S. Parke Aurora, CO 3 720-446-5893 Weekdays 8 a Sanday 8 am-5	ido na mark in the bax iow stano ny, MD dvey, DO ar Rd 0015 s m-10 pm -Spm Spm	t want to seek medic below for the Design Rocky Mou Medical Gr Dr. Anna Ran Dr. Brian Beatty, E 13650 E. Mississip Aurona, CO 80012 (720) 748-7072 (Near 1-225 & Mis Monday-Friday 8a	ai treatment ated Provide ntain oup naswamy, ME D.O. pi Ave Suite 1 sissippi) en – 5pm	ot this time.	to see if seeking treats to see if seeking treats dical Group Nelson, MD si, MD Malmgren PA Belleview 4428C cod Village, CO 80111 H-1166 -25 & Belleview) r - Friday 8am-5pm facility.	Workw Occupations 2550 S. Packe Aurora, Co 80 720-512-4408 Monday- Frids	vell al Medicine Rd, Suite 15 014
What object or substance harms What body parts are affected?	at the time of injur at the employee? ase put a check r Care N Care N Dr. Steven Ra Sharon McKe Sci20 S. Parke Amora, CO 8 720-446-5893 Weekdays 8 a Sunday 8 am-3 Sunday 8 am-3 Ilow up care new seen by one of r le from my scho r mizleading fac	I do no mark in the bax mark in the bax iow stano ay, MD dvey, DO avey, DO	t want to seek medic below for the Design Racky Mou Medical Gr Dr. Anna Ran Dr. Brian Benty, I 13650 E. Mixiisip Aurra, CO 80012 (720) 748-7072 (Near 1-225 & Mis Monday- Friday Sa Monday- Friday Sa ous injury cell 911 or g ded at one of the abo	ai treatment ated Provide ntain oup naswamy, ME J.O. opi Ave Suite sissippi) en – Spin on to the nes ve selected a ders for Che anagement G ouppany for (	at this time.	to see if seeking treats A Health Works edical Group Nelson, MD si, MD Malmgren PA Belleview 4428C cod Village, CO 80111 H-1166 -25 & Belleview) - Friday 8am-5pm facility. oviders the following bools. I further under Kick Management w of defrauding or stien	went. Workw Occupations 2550 S. Packe Anrora, Co 30 720-512-4408 Monday- Frids Monday- Frids dey.	vell al Medicine Rd, Suite 15 014 ry 8an -Spm decispanted awful to
Concentra	at the time of injur at the employee? ase put a check r Care N Care N Dr. Steven Ra Sharon McKe Sci20 S. Parke Amora, CO 8 720-446-5893 Weekdays 8 a Sunday 8 am-3 Sunday 8 am-3 Ilow up care new seen by one of r le from my scho r mizleading fac	I do no mark in the bax mark in the bax iow stano ay, MD dvey, DO avey, DO	t want to seek medic below for the Design Racky Mou Medical Gr Dr. Anna Ran Dr. Brian Benty, I 13650 E. Mixiisip Aurra, CO 80012 (720) 748-7072 (Near 1-225 & Mis Monday- Friday Sa Monday- Friday Sa ous injury cell 911 or g ded at one of the abo	ai treatment ated Provide ntain oup naswamy, MD D.O. pi Ave Suite 1 sissippi) an – 5pm go to the nea ve selected o ders for Che anagement C ompany for damages and	ot this time.	to see if seeking treats A Health Works edical Group Nelson, MD si, MD Malmgren PA Belleview 4428C cod Village, CO 80111 H-1166 -25 & Belleview) - Friday 8am-5pm facility. oviders the following - bools. I further under Kick Management w of defrauding or stien	tery.	vell al Medicine Rd, Suite 15 014 ry 8am -Spm decispanted awful to

### Temporary Paid Leaves of Absence, Policy 4751

### A. Sick Leave

### 1. General Provisions

- i. At the beginning of each school year, each nurse will be allocated one day of sick leave per 18 days of employment. Unused days will be accumulative. Sick leave may be used for injury or sickness of the nurse, the immediate family or household as defined as spouse, domestic partner, son, daughter, mother, father, brother, sister, step-parent, step-child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparents, grandchild, legal guardian or someone whose relationship with the employee is similar.
- ii. Sick leave may be used to extend bereavement leave.
- iii. Sick leave may be used for other general leave purposes up to the limits in (B) (8) below.
- iv. When on leave of absence, sick leave accrued will neither be lost nor accumulated. Upon return to duty, an employee will begin with that total accumulated at the time the leave commenced.
- v. If a nurse is absent from school on a nurse-pupil contact day for reasons falling under the provisions of this policy, every effort will be made to hire a qualified substitute nurse.
- vi. The Sick Leave Bank procedure as contained within Administrative Procedure 4151.2 (see Teacher Policy) may allow a nurse to request and be granted days of sick leave for extended illness or disability in excess of the approved number of days allowed in paragraph #1 above.

### 2. Payment for Accumulated Sick Leave

i. <u>Eligibility Criteria:</u>

A nurse becomes eligible when the following criteria have been met, or when otherwise approved by the Board of Education.

- 1. Has been employed by the District as a nurse for no less than ten (10) continuous years.
- 2. Has submitted a written resignation, from employment in the District, to the Board of Education. This resignation shall be effective prior to receiving cash under this policy.
- 3. Has completed an accumulated sick leave compensation application (Administrative Procedure 4751.3), and has submitted it to the Board of Education.

ii. Payment for Accumulated Sick Leave

Compensation for accumulated sick leave days shall be at the rate of one-half  $\binom{1}{2}$  the employee's highest <u>per-diem</u> rate during the last five (5) years of employment as determined by the nurse's salary schedule. (See Administrative Procedure 4751.3, Payment for Accumulated Sick Leave.) iii. <u>Death Provisions</u>

Upon the death of a nurse on active status or on board approved leave, the District will pay the nurse's designated beneficiary for the nurse's accumulated sick leave.

### 3. Jury Duty and Court Subpoena Leave

i. Leave will be given to nurses for appearance in court as a witness, to serve on a jury, or to respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the connivance or misconduct of the teacher. ii. Nurses should notify their immediate supervisor or principal and the Office of Human Resources of the as soon as possible prior to the date service must be rendered.

iii. Such leaves of absence will be granted with pay provided the teacher surrenders to the District any payment received for jury or witness fees, not including reimbursement for transportation expenses or meals.

### 4. Adoption and Childbirth Leave

- i. Nurses will be granted up to thirty (30) days of accrued sick/general leave associated with the process of adoption. (e.g.: travel, medical examinations, and/or the requirements of the adoption agency and/or local, state, national, and international adoption regulations or other requirements that are of a similar nature, including the care of the adopted child or children.)
- ii. An employee may use up to fifteen (15) days of accrued sick/general leave per school year within the first six (6) weeks following the birth of his/her child by a spouse or domestic partner.

### B. General Leave

Each nurse will be permitted a total of three (3) days (180 to 217 contracted days) or four (4) days (218 or more contracted days) per academic year for the purpose of the following general leaves (1-7). Necessary travel time to accomplish the purpose of the general leave (1-7) also qualifies for use of general leave. At the end of the academic school year, unused general leave will be converted to sick leave and added to the nurse's sick leave on a oneto-one basis.

Every effort will be made by the nurse to notify the building principal at least 24 hours in advance of such leave. Each nurse will be paid the normal rate of pay for the approved general leaves. The total number of days shall be chargeable to any or all of the following situations:

### 1. Personal Leave

Personal leave shall be defined as required attendance for business of a personal nature, which cannot be accomplished except during the contract time.

2. Bereavement, Graduation, and Wedding Leave

Leave shall be granted to a nurse to attend a funeral, graduation or wedding of a member of the immediate family of the nurse as herein defined, or for someone whose relationship with the nurse is similar:

Spouse	Son	Daughter		
Parent	Dependent Child	Sister		
Mother-in-law	Father-in-law	Domestic Partner		
Grandchild	Brother	Grandparent		
Guardian	Step-Child	Step-Parent		

### 3. Births

Leave shall be granted to the nurse who gives birth or to the nurse whose spouse or domestic partner gives birth.

### 4. Attendance in Court, Weddings and Religious Holidays

- A nurse may be absent, with pay, on a day identified by a religious body as a religious holiday, provided the religious body has established that in order to properly observe such religious holiday no work should be performed on such day and provided the employee is an active member of such religious body. Notification for such absence shall be made to the principal, at least ten (10) school days prior to the religious holiday.
- ii. Nurses who identify leave days as being for religious purposes under the provisions of this section shall be allowed to use sick leave for other general leave purposes up to the number of days used for religious leave (not to exceed three (3) days).
- iii. Nurses who fail to identify leave days as being for religious purposes under the provisions of this section will not be allowed to use sick leave for other general purposes in these cases, the employee is not required to state the reason for the general leave.

### 5. Emergencies

- i. Leave shall be granted for household emergencies, auto mishaps, severe weather or road conditions and other unforeseen and unavoidable emergencies.
- ii. In cases of extreme emergency, additional days (those from sick leave) may be granted with the approval of the principal and the superintendent or his designee.
- 6. Professional Consulting Leave

Leave shall be granted for the purpose of serving as a consultant outside of the District.

Cherry Creek School District no. 5, Greenwood Village, CO 80111

### 7. Professional Development Leave

Leave shall be granted for the purpose of preparing for and completing exams, written and/or oral, for the Degrees of Baccalaureate, Masters, Specialist, and Doctorate.

8. Beginning in the second year of employment, nurses may use up to four (4) days of accrued sick leave annually for any of the identified general leave purposes except category 6, Professional Consulting Leave above.

## C. <u>Public Office Leave</u>

Nurses who are elected public officials may be granted leave as necessary to fulfill the duties of that office. If pay accompanies the released time, the nurse will turn in the pay, as in the policy for jury service.

### D. <u>Physical and/or Mental Examination Leave</u>

Leave with pay will be granted for physical and/or mental examinations required by the Superintendent when the time specifications of that requirement necessitate school time to comply.

## E. <u>Emergency Leave</u>

When any event or circumstance at work the site, such as a natural disaster or medical quarantine, restricts an employee from reporting to work at his/her assigned building, the District will provide options to prevent loss of pay or paid leave such as:

- 1. The District will assign the employee(s) an alternative site(s) and/or position(s) until the employee(s) is (are) able to return to his/her (their) assigned building.
- 2. The District will provide an opportunity for the employee to make up the day(s) on non-contracted days.
- 3. The District may assign the employee to work as a substitute until the employee is able to return to his/her assigned building.

The options listed above do not preclude an employee's appropriate use of the temporary leaves in this policy.

# F. Assault and/or Battery Leave

A nurse who is unable to perform his/her duties resulting from an assault and/or battery arising out of an incurred within the scope and course of, and in connection with, the performance of his/her assigned duties, and not as a result of his/her own negligence or disobedience of Board policies or reasonable rules and regulations, shall be eligible to receive his/her full salary for the time he/she is temporarily absent from work as a result of the injury.

For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions shall apply:

"Assault" means any willful attempt or threat to inflict injury upon another person when coupled with an apparent present ability to do so, and any intentional display or force which would give a person reason to fear or expect immediate bodily harm. "Battery" means the intentional and wrongful physical contact with a person, which may include an object, without his/her consent, which entails some bodily injury or offensive touching.

The following conditions must be met before a nurse's full salary will be paid for assault and battery leave:

- 1. The nurse's conduct was within the bounds of general standards or professional behavior, the nurse was acting within the scope and course of his/her employment, and the nurse was not negligent.
- 2. The nurse must notify the building administrator or other appropriate administrator/supervisor as soon as possible of the occurrence and must complete a workers' compensation report of injury.
- 3. The reporting of such an injury must be in accordance with the required reporting, time lines and forms to be used for the reporting and handling of workers' compensation accidents stated in Policy 4012 and Administrative Procedure 4012.1.
- 4. The nurse must use a District designated workers' compensation physician, who will determine the necessity of the absence from work.
- 5. The amount of workers' compensation payments for salary or such award made for temporary disability due to the injury from the assault and battery will be paid to the District for as long as such nurse is eligible for temporary disability payments under the Workers' Compensation Act. The payment of such monies to the District shall constitute payment of compensation benefits to the employee in accordance with C.R.S. 8-42-124(2) of the Act.

In the event the foregoing conditions are satisfied, none of the days of absence resulting from such occurrence shall be deducted from the nurse's accumulated sick leave, general leave, or other similar benefit in accordance with C.R.S. 8-42-124(2) of the Act. The District's obligation to pay a nurse's full salary under this policy for assault and/or battery leave shall terminate once the nurse has either been released to return to work or reaches maximum medical improvement as determined by the designated treating physician.

However, if the Nurse has been released to return to work or reaches maximum medical improvement but still requires medical treatment for injuries caused by the assault and/or battery, the employee will continue to receive normal salary for hours and/or days missed for such treatment until the treating physician has concluded that the injury caused by the assault and/or battery has terminated or up to six (6) calendar months from the date of the employee's return to work or reaches maximum medical improvement, whichever is less. The Superintendent, or designee, may extend this time for receiving normal salary for treatment based on the teacher's written request for such extension. If the Superintendent, or designee, does not offer such an extension, the written denial will include an explanation of the basis for the decision.

The termination of the District's obligation does not limit the right of the nurse to full payment of any permanent disability award granted to the nurse under the Workers' Compensation Act.

Legal Ref.: C.R.S. 8-40-101 et. Seq. (Workers' Compensation Act of Colorado)

Cross Ref.: Board Policy 4012 (Workers' Compensation) and Board Administrative Procedure 4012.1 (Workers' Compensation Claims Procedure)

# G. Professional Leave

- 1. Professional leave, upon the approval of the Executive Director of Student Achievement Services or designee and the building principal, shall be granted to the nurse for the purpose of attending professional conferences or other professional activities.
- 2. Each nurse will be paid the normal rate of pay for these days.
- 3. Requests for professional leave must be in advance and prior to the nurse's attendance at the activity.

Revised: May 16, 2019 Adopted: September 9, 2019 Effective: July 1, 2019

# **Temporary Paid Leaves of Absences**, *Memorandum of Understanding*

Policy 4751

The Cherry Creek Education Association and the Cherry Creek School District desire to change the allocation and differentiation of sick leave and general leave, per Policy 4151. Specifically, both parties agree to determine the process and policy necessary to allow that all paid leave is able to be used regardless of the reason for an absence. In all instances, to the greatest extent possible, every effort will be made to provide advance notice to the principal or designee when absences are known in advance.

The following provisions will apply:

- 1. Use of the General Leave Request and Verification Form, *Administrative Procedure 4151.1*, and any language referring to the General Leave Form (see 4151.B) will be suspended.
- 2. A teacher shall enter any absence into the District's absence reporting system. Entry of absence will attest that the leave is being used in accordance with Policy 4151. A teacher taking general leave is not required to state the reason.
- 3. A teacher whose leave exceeds four (4) consecutive days may be contacted by the Office of Human Resources to discuss the feasibility of FMLA protections.
- 4. The District shall continue to monitor the usage of leave and the District's substitute pool moving into the 2020-2021 school year in order to inform permanent changes made to policy language during negotiations for the 2021-2022 school year.

Revised: May 5, 2020 Adopted: July 20, 2020 Effective: July 1, 2020

### General Leave Request and Verification Form, Administrative Procedure 4751.1

**SUSPENDED** 

NAME \_\_\_\_\_ EMPLOYEE# \_\_\_\_\_

### **General Provisions**

In accordance with Policy 4751, Temporary Leaves of Absence, each nurse will be permitted a total of three (3) general leave days (for contracts of 185 days up to 229 days) or four (4) general leave days (for contracts of 230 or more days) per academic year for the purpose of taking general leave for any one of the following approved categories described below.

- 1. Personal Leave - Required attendance for business of a personal nature which cannot be accomplished except during contract time. This leave is not intended for recreational use or to extend holidays or any breaks/ vacations.
- 2. Bereavement, Graduation, and Wedding Leave - Immediate family of the employee, or for someone whose relationship with the employee is similar:

Spouse	Son	Daughter
Mother	Dependent Child	Sister
Mother-in-law	Father-in-law	Father
Grandchild	Brother	Grandparent
Guardian	Step-Child	Step-Parent

- 3. Births - Employee who gives birth or whose wife gives birth.
- Leave for Religious Holidays 4.
- Emergencies Household emergencies, auto mishaps, severe weather or road conditions and 5. other unforeseen and unavoidable emergencies. An emergency is defined as an event when no foreknowledge exists on the part of the nurse and immediate attention to the emergency by the nurse is required.
- Professional and Consulting Leave To serve as a consultant outside the District. 6.
- Professional Development Leave For preparation and completion of written oral exams for 7. Masters, Specialist, and Doctorate that is part of the nurse's approved professional growth plan.

## Additional Provisions – Conversion of Sick Leave

In addition to the general provisions, nurses who are in their second year of employment and beyond, may qualify for the ability to convert four (4) days of sick leave as described in Policy 4751(2)(B) per academic year to access all of the above-referenced general leave categories except the category of Professional Consulting Leave.

I verify that the day(s) I have designated below for use as a General Leave will be used in accordance with the provisions of Policy 4751.

Signature	Date	
Date(s) of General Leave:		
Dept. Coordinator &/or Administrator Signature	Date	
Substitute Requested: Yes No		

Every effort will be made by the nurse to notify the building principal at least 24 hours in advance of such leave.

Approved by Superintendent Robert D. Tschirki, June 24, 1994 Revision approved by Mary F. Chesley July 1, 2009

Accumulated Sick Leave Compensation Application, Administrative Procedure 4751.2

Pursuant to Policy 4751(B)(2), of the Board of Education of Cherry Creek School District, I hereby apply for compensation for accumulated sick leave.

1. Number of days of accumulated sick leave:

### 2. Compensation:

Number of days to be paid at one-half the employee's highest per diem rate during the last five years of employment.

### 3. Adjustments:

If any or all of the days of the accumulated sick leave are used prior to the effective day of separation, the total payment as reflected above shall be adjusted with respect to compensation for unused sick leave.

4. Upon my death, any unpaid portion of my accumulated sick leave compensation shall be due and payable in full to:

\_\_\_\_ my designated beneficiary, if payment can be made in such a manner under existing statutes

Signature (Retiree):

Date:

Approved by Superintendent, Monte C. Moses, October 14, 2002 Revised by Superintendent, Monte C. Moses, August 16, 2004 Revised by Superintendent, Mary F. Chesley, August 10, 2009

### Military Leave, Jury Duty Leave, Subpoenaed Witness, Policy 4051

### 1. Leave of Absence for Active Military Duty for Training

- a. An employee, who is a member of a reserve component of the United States military services or a member of a National Guard Unit, shall be granted leave for up to fifteen days of active duty for training in any year.
- b. Such military training leave shall be granted with pay if the training takes place during an employee's regular contracted or assigned work time. Such sums as shall be paid by the military for salary while on training leave shall be reimbursed to the District up to that amount which equals the employee's normal salary or wage for the day(s) in question.

Should the amount paid by the military exceed the employee's normal salary or wage paid by the District, the employee may keep such excess.

c. A copy of the employee's orders will accompany the request for leave. The provisions of Colorado Statute shall apply.

# 2. <u>Military Leave</u>

An employee who is involuntarily inducted into active military service shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence without pay by the Board of Education for the period of involuntary service. A copy of the employee's orders will accompany the request for leave. The provisions of Colorado Statute shall apply.

## 3. <u>Leave of Absence for Jury Duty</u>

All regular employees and all regular part-time employees under court orders for jury duty shall be granted leave of absence with pay. Such sums as shall be paid by the court, minus expenses, shall be forwarded to the School District if jury duty occurs on a contracted day.

The employee shall supply documentation of absences and amount of compensation.

### 4. <u>Subpoenaed Witness</u>

Any employee subpoenaed as a witness in a court case involving the Cherry Creek School District shall be granted leave with pay unless said employee is the plaintiff in the case.

Adopted: November 14, 1983 Effective: January 1, 1984

# Non-Paid Extended Leaves of Absence, Policy 4753

### 1. <u>General Provisions</u>

Extended Leaves of Absence granted under this Policy will be without pay. All accrued benefits, credits and years of service will be restored to a nurse upon return to employment. No leave referred to in this Policy will be considered an interruption of service.

All requests for Extended Leave of Absence or renewals will be made in writing to the Superintendent.

- B. A nurse whose leave does not exceed eighteen (18) weeks, not including breaks, holidays, and off-track time (for nurses on year-round calendars) will return to the same school and position provided:
  - (1) The exact days of leave are included in the leave application and approval.
  - (2) The return date is prior to the last four weeks of the school year.

- (3) The returning nurse does not interfere with ongoing athletic season or other performance schedules in which the nurse is directly involved.
- C. A nurse whose leave exceeds the above time will return only at the beginning of a semester, quarter, or other natural break in the school year. Every effort will be made to return the nurse to the same school.

While on extended leave without pay, if not otherwise provided for, a nurse will have the option to remain an active participant in benefit programs by contributing the full cost of the programs.

Except in cases of hardship, all nurses are expected to make application for leaves thirty (30) calendar days prior to the commencement of the leave. All requests for approval will be made on the prescribed form. Nurses returning from such leave will be placed on the salary schedule at the step to which they would have been entitled prior to taking such leave based on service and paid leave completed prior to taking the unpaid leave. (See Policy 4741).

### 2. Extended Health (Medical) Leave

A nurse who is disabled due to illness or injury may apply for an extended Medical Leave by submitting a request for such leave together with a certificate from a licensed and recognized physician confirming the nature and extent of the disability due to illness or injury.

Requests for medical leave will be granted for up to one (1) year when the disability is established. Extension of leave beyond that time is at the discretion of the District.

A nurse on an extended Medical Health Leave seeking an extension must submit a certificate from a licensed and recognized physician establishing the nurse's continuing disability. A nurse seeking to return from a Medical Leave that includes a leave for disability reasons, must submit a certificate from a licensed and recognized physician establishing the nurse's fitness to perform the duties of his/her position.

A nurse who is pregnant will be granted Medical Leave, due to pregnancy related disability, for any period of time when she is unable to perform the duties of her position. <u>See</u> Policy 4751 and Administrative Procedure 4151.2 (Sick Leave Bank) for eligibility for paid sick leave. A nurse, who has recently delivered, may qualify for a Parenting Leave under Policy 4753 (3) below.

See District Policy GBGF regarding Family Medical Leave eligibility.

### 3. <u>Parenting Leave</u>

Upon written request, a nurse may be granted leave for the purpose of caring for children in the family. Such request must include the period of anticipated leave. In unusual circumstances, the period of leave may be extended.

Upon request, a nurse adopting a child may be granted an unpaid leave commencing at the time of adoption. Said nurse will notify the Superintendent in writing of the desire to take such leave as soon as approval is known. Except in cases of emergency, the nurse will give notice thirty (30) days prior to the date at which time the leave is to begin. Such request must include the periods of anticipated leave. In unusual circumstances the period of leave may be extended.

# 4. <u>Family Care Leave</u>

Leave of absence, of up to one year, will be granted for the purpose of caring for a sick member of a nurse's immediate family or household, as defined in Sick Leave Policy. The illness is subject to verification.

# 5. <u>Extended Leave under the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)</u>

Nurses covered by this policy may also be entitled to leaves by virtue of the federally enacted Family Medical Leave Act. While federal law allows the District to deny leave under certain circumstances to employees who are among the highest ten percent (10%) in compensation of District employees, the District shall not invoke the highest ten percent (10%) rule to deny leave under these provisions.

Upon return from leave that is solely an FMLA leave, the nurse shall be returned to the school and position or positions previously held. Nurses are encouraged to discuss the expected return from leave in advance and to make reasonable plans to return in a manner which least disrupts services and other activities. If the FMLA leave is extended by any other leave, the nurse shall be placed in accordance with the return-from-leave provisions in this policy.

# 6. <u>Extended Personal Leave</u>

Any nurse, upon application and recommendation by the Superintendent, may be granted a leave of absence for a definite period of time without salary when such a leave would be beneficial to the District and the nurse. Such leaves may be for use in advanced study. All leaves of absence will be considered by the Superintendent with recommendations to the Board. All employees must make application at least one month in advance of the beginning of such leave, except in cases of hardship.

# 7. <u>Public Office Leave</u>

Leave of absence without pay will be granted to a nurse for up to two years for the purpose of serving in public office. A nurse returning to the District after such leave will not qualify for a salary increment; however, professional growth credit may be accrued if previously arranged in the Professional Growth Plan.

# 8. <u>Professional Development Leave</u>

Nurses will be granted a leave for advanced study or for travel resulting in the professional growth of the nurse, provided such travel has been part of the nurse's approved Professional Growth Plan. Such leaves will not qualify the nurse for salary increment; however, professional growth credit may be accrued.

### 9. <u>Professional Service Leave</u>

Nurses may be granted a leave of absence for the purpose of serving in the Peace Corps, VISTA, or other such teaching/nursing experience. Upon return from such leave, the nurse will receive outside experience credit based on the period of service. The nurse will not receive more total experience credit than allowed under Policy 4741 (A).

### 10. Professional Organization Leave

Leave of absence without pay shall be granted to a nurse, for the term of the nurse's office but not to exceed two years, for the purpose of serving as a state or national officer in a recognized professional educational organization. Such leave may be extended by the Board for subsequent one-year periods. A nurse returning to the District after such leave will not qualify for a salary increment; however, professional growth credit may be accrued if previously arranged in the professional growth plan.

Split from Policy 4751, July 1, 2009.

Revised: June 8, 2009 Adopted: August 10, 2009 Effective: July 1, 2009

# General Information

### Employee - Board of Education Relationships, Policy 4002

- 1. The Board of Education of the Cherry Creek School District is always accessible to employees and employee representatives of the District.
- 2. As a general rule, any topic necessitating official action should first be submitted to the Office of Human Resources before being placed on the agenda.

Revised: June 10, 2002 Adopted: June 10, 2002 Effective: July 1, 2002

### Publication of Articles, Policy 4003

All staff members are encouraged to submit original articles for publication. Manuscripts dealing with programs of the Cherry Creek School District shall be reviewed and approved by the Superintendent.

Proposed: January 12, 1981 Adopted: February 9, 1981

### Political Activities, Policy 4006

Except as provided in Colorado statute, no employee of the Cherry Creek School District shall use his/her position or the facilities of the District to promote political objectives.

As a protection to the District from persons who may desire to use the schools for the purpose of disseminating political propaganda, no written materials shall be circulated or posted on school property without the approval of the building principal.

Copies of all materials referred to in the foregoing paragraph, receiving the approval of the building principal, shall be filed with the Superintendent of Schools.

Proposed: January 12, 1988 Adopted: February 9, 1988

### **Organizational Membership**, *Policy 4013*

No contract or other employment arrangement executed or made by and between the School District and employee shall require, by inference or otherwise, that said, employee pay dues or belong to any group or organization.

Proposed: May 12, 1980 Adopted: June 9, 1980

### Athletic Attendance, Policy 4043

All District personnel will present their District/School issued photo ID at home games of athletic contests for the employee and one guest to enter for free. This does not include any postseason games.

Revised: April 22, 2014 Adopted: June 15, 2015 Effective: July 1, 2014

### Physical and Mental Examinations and Alcohol and Controlled Substance Testing, Policy 4047

Employees of the Cherry Creek School District are subject to physical and mental examinations and alcohol and controlled substances testing prior to and during employment. The following provisions of this policy set forth the circumstances and conditions when such examinations and testing will be required:

### A. <u>Physical Examination - All Employees</u>

After recommendation for employment but before employment commences, candidates for employment may be required to take and pass such physical and mental examinations as may be prescribed by the District. Results of such examinations shall be reported on forms provided by the school district, or forms acceptable to the school district, and shall be filed in the Office of Human Resources. All examinations shall be at the sole cost and expense of the candidate.

### B. <u>Required Examination During Employment - All Employee</u>

- 1. The Superintendent or designee may require any employee within the School District to submit to a physical or mental examination, when he/she has reasonable suspicion to believe:
  - (a) the welfare of the employee, students or other employees justifies such examination; or
  - (b) that the employee's ability to perform his or her duties is impaired due to physical or mental reasons.

The School District will pay the cost of the examination which shall be conducted by a physician of the School District's choice. However, in the event the employee desires to utilize a personal physician, subject to the approval of the Superintendent, to satisfy the employee's examination requirement, the employee may do so, provided the examination can be conducted within such time as may be reasonably required by the School District. In such event, the private physician will be paid, by the School District, an amount equal to the amount usually and customarily paid by the School District to the physician selected by it.

Following the examination, a written report shall be issued by the physician.

2. As a condition of continued employment with the School District, all employees consent to a chemical test of their blood, urine or breath upon request of the Superintendent or designee. This test shall be ordered in the event the Superintendent or designee has reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or in the event of a reasonable suspicion that the employee's ability to perform his or her duties is impaired by the use of alcohol or drugs. The employee will be allowed up to thirty minutes to obtain representation of his/her choice. Any such tests shall be conducted at any hospital, clinic, or

facility properly equipped to administer such tests and shall be performed by any doctor, nurse or technician properly qualified to administer such tests. The employee may not select the physician or technician to administer the tests. All such tests shall be paid for by the District.

The term drugs, as used herein, shall include, but not be limited to, those substances defined in CR5. 12-22-30 1 et. seq., known as the Colorado Controlled Substance Act of 1981.

- (a) The failure or refusal of an employee to submit to any test required in paragraph 2 above, or to submit to and obtain the examinations required in paragraph 1 above, shall constitute insubordination, and shall result in:
  - (1) immediate suspension without pay, except as required by Colorado Statute, and
  - (2) termination of employment being recommended to the Board of Education.
- 3. Alcohol and Controlled Substance (Drugs) Testing for Commercial Driver's License (CDL) Employees
  - (a) The Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991 (the "ACT") and Department of Transportation rules, procedures and regulations (the "Regulations") require that the District conduct pre-employment/pre-duty, random, reasonable suspicion, post-accident, return to duty and follow-up testing of all District employees required to obtain a Commercial Driver's License ("CDL").
  - (b) All alcohol and controlled substance testing performed under and pursuant to this Section C, will be conducted in accordance with federal regulations, the Act and procedures adopted by the District.
    - Controlled substance testing will be conducted by means of a urine specimen collected and tested by a laboratory certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.
    - (2) Alcohol testing will be conducted using an evidential breath-testing device.
    - (3) Employees will not be entitled to have testing performed at a location or by an individual or facility other than that designated by the District. However, a split sample of the urine test for controlled substances will be available for the employee pursuant to District policy and federal regulations in the event the sample tested is confirmed positive.
    - (4) An employee may not refuse to submit to alcohol and/or controlled substance testing under this Section C. Refusal shall result in

immediate suspension of employment without pay and recommendation of termination to the Board.

# C. <u>The required testing under this Section C will be conducted at the District's expense</u> and as follows:

- 1. Pre-employment testing shall be administered to all applicants offered a position in the District requiring a CDL prior to the first time the employee performs any safetysensitive functions for the District.
- 2. Random alcohol testing shall be conducted at any time period surrounding the performance of safety-related functions, which includes just before or just after the employee performs the safety-related function. Random controlled substance testing shall be performed anytime while the employee is at work.
- 3. Reasonable suspicion testing will be conducted of any employee when a determination and observation is made by a trained supervisor and he has a reasonable suspicion to believe any employee has violated the District's policies and/or federal regulations relating to alcohol or controlled substance use or possession.
- 4. Post-accident testing will be conducted on any employee involved in an accident which results in the loss of human life or if the employee receives a citation for a moving traffic violation arising out of an accident.
- 5. Return to duty testing will be required prior to an employee being reinstated, if at all, after an employee has tested positive for prohibited alcohol concentration levels or the presence of a controlled substance and after the employee has undergone an evaluation by a substance abuse professional except as noted in No. 6 below.
- 6. Follow-up testing will be required of any employee identified by a substance abuse professional as needing assistance in resolving problems with alcohol misuse or controlled substance use and who has returned to duty.
- **D.** Records of all tests will be maintained and kept confidential in accordance with District procedures and federal regulations.
- **E.** All affected employees and employee organizations will be provided with educational materials which explain the requirements of this Section C, the District procedures and federal regulations related thereto.
- **F.** The District encourages all employees with any alcohol abuse or controlled substance use to seek assistance through a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) and will provide employees lists of individuals and organizations providing this service. Unless otherwise provided by law or District policy, the District is not required to provide rehabilitation, pay for substance abuse treatment or to reinstate an employee terminated for violations of District policy rebating to the use or possession of alcohol or controlled substances.
- **G.** Any employee who is determined, as the result of any of the required alcohol or controlled substance testing, to have violated any District policy relating to the use of possession of

Cherry Creek School District no. 5, Greenwood Village, CO 80111

alcohol or controlled substances shall, consistent with state and federal law and District policies, be subject to disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

Revised: December 12, 1994 Adopted: January 9, 1995

## Communicable or Life-Threatening Diseases, Administrative Procedure 4047.2

### A. <u>Purpose</u>

This procedure establishes a mutually-beneficial process between an ill employee and the District to insure that the health or safety of the employee, students and other employees is protected.

## B. <u>Identification of Ill Employees</u>

Employees affected by a communicable or life-threatening disease or illness may be identified through self-report, or on the basis of the District having a reasonable belief that a staff member is ill. Reasonable belief would exist in, but is not limited to, situations where the employee's health is observed to be deteriorating to the point of interfering with the performance of his/her duties, the employee displays persistent physical symptoms of illness, where the District becomes aware of a diagnosis of such an illness or disease, or where there is other reasonable evidence of the existence of such disease.

If a supervisor has been informed or has reasonable cause to believe that an employee is affected by a communicable or life-threatening disease or illness, the supervisor will immediately notify the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or his/her designee may confer with, but not limited to, the supervisor, the Executive Director of Instruction for that school, the staff member, and the Superintendent of Schools for determination of fitness as provided in Section D below.

### C. <u>Verification of Illness or Disease</u>

The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee will take reasonable steps to verify the existence or non-existence of a communicable or life-threatening disease. This will be determined by a review of medical reports, files, diagnostic testing, hospital records, and/or consultation with physicians or other medical personnel as may be deemed necessary.

### D. <u>Determination of Fitness for Continued Duty</u>

In the event an employee is affected by a communicable or life-threatening disease or illness, recommendations regarding the employee's fitness for continued duty and contact with students and other staff will be made on a case-by-case basis by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. The recommendations will be based on, but not limited to:

1. Medical reports regarding the condition of the employee;

Cherry Creek School District no. 5, Greenwood Village, CO 80111

- 2. The type of duties and interaction in the work place required of the employee in performance of his/her assignment;
- 3. The impact of continued employment on the affected employee, students and others in the work place;
- 4. Consideration of "reasonable accommodations" in the employment of the affected employee pursuant to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act when applicable, and
- 5. Input and recommendations from public health officials and others.

Recommendations will be submitted to the Superintendent of Schools for review and action.

## E. <u>Return to Duty</u>

If an ill staff member is determined to be fit for continued duty, the supervisor will be informed of the employee's medical condition, the reasonable accommodations/ precautions, if any, to be observed in the work setting, and any other factors that would warrant the reconsideration of continued duty. A regular schedule of medical examinations or evaluations for continued employment may be required.

## F. <u>Termination of Employment</u>

If a staff member is determined to be unfit for continued duty, he/she will be entitled to the use of accumulated paid sick leave, sick leave bank provisions (if applicable), and medical leave of absence as outlined in district policy.

After all leave options are exhausted and the employee is still not deemed fit to resume duties, employment will be terminated by the employee's resignation or retirement, or by Board of Education action including initiation of dismissal proceedings under applicable Colorado Statute or District policies subject to the usual appeals by the employee.

# G. <u>Confidentiality</u>

All information gained by the District through the application of this procedure, including the identity of an employee, will be treated as confidential except as necessary to implement this procedure. Information will not be released publicly by officials of the school district without the written consent of the affected employee.

The adoption of this procedure does not create any right claim or cause of action against the District or its employees where such right claim or cause of action does not otherwise exist in the absence hereof

Approved by Superintendent, Jim S. Huge, June 13, 1988

### Drug-Free Workplace, Policy 4048

The unlawful manufacture, possession, use or distribution of illicit drugs, as defined by law, marijuana, and alcohol on school district premises or as part of any of the school district activities is specifically prohibited.

Observance of this policy is mandatory and a condition of employment. A violation shall subject the employee to appropriate disciplinary sanctions (consistent with local, state and federal law), including suspension and up to and including termination of employment and referral to the appropriate law enforcement agency for prosecution. A disciplinary sanction may include completion of an appropriate rehabilitation program.

Drug and alcohol counseling and rehabilitation and re-entry programs may be available through the District. The District encourages affected employees to seek assistance.

Each employee will be provided with a copy of this policy which sets forth the expected standards of conduct and the disciplinary sanctions which may be imposed as a result of a violation of this policy.

Pursuant to the provisions of federal law, any employee who is convicted of or pleads guilty or nolo contendere (no contest) to any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace, shall notify the Superintendent or his designee within five days after the conviction. The District has the obligation and shall notify the appropriate Federal agency within 10 days after receiving notice of such conviction or plea if there is a relationship between federal funds received by the District and the convicted employee's work site.

The Board of Education shall conduct a biennial review of its drug and alcohol abuse prevention programs to determine the programs' effectiveness, to implement required changes if necessary, and to insure that disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced.

Proposed: June 28, 2013 Adopted: August 12, 2013 Effective: July 1, 2013

# Collaboration and Conflict Resolution to Prevent Workplace Bullying, Policy 4138

### 1. Policy Summary

- a. The Cherry Creek School District is committed to working collaboratively among stakeholders to encourage and support a school and workplace climate conducive to teaching and learning while ensuring that all CCSD employees have a safe workplace, one where all employees are equally accountable for creating and maintaining a safe culture. The District considers workplace bullying to be unacceptable and shall not be tolerated.
- b. The prevention of workplace bullying, as well as the prevention of retaliation against individuals who report acts of workplace bullying, requires a system-wide effort involving prevention, intervention, reporting, investigation and resolution.
- c. Building administrators and ARs will commit to meeting with the goal of effectively addressing building concerns as they arise and cultivate an ongoing collaborative relationship. Cooperation is imperative throughout this process.

d. Differences of opinion, interpersonal conflicts, and occasional problems in working relations are an inevitable part of working life and do not necessarily constitute workplace bullying.

### 2. Policy Statement

### a. Prohibited Conduct

Bullying behavior is often persistent and part of a pattern, but it can also occur as a single event. This is defined as conduct that is unwelcome, repeated, deliberate, hurtful, threatening, humiliating, intimidating, or acts of sabotage. These behaviors, whether verbal, physical or otherwise, interfere with work and may create a hostile, offensive and/or toxic workplace. These behaviors are typically conducted by one or more employees against another employee or other employees. Workplace bullying often involves an abuse or misuse of power and authority.

Examples of workplace bullying may include but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Conduct that a reasonable person would find hostile, offensive, and unrelated to the employer's legitimate business interest;
- 2. Spreading misinformation or malicious rumors;
- 3. Behavior or language that frightens, humiliates, belittles, or degrades, including criticism or feedback that is delivered with yelling, screaming, threats, insults, angry outbursts, excessive profanity or name calling;
- 4. Excessive monitoring or micro-managing;
- 5. Making repeated inappropriate comments about a person's appearance, lifestyle, family, or culture;
- 6. Regularly teasing or making someone the brunt of pranks or practical jokes;
- 7. Interfering with a person's personal property or work equipment;
- 8. Circulating inappropriate or embarrassing photos or videos via e-mail or social media;
- 9. Unwarranted physical contact;
- 10. Purposefully excluding, isolating, or marginalizing a person from normal work activities;
- 11. Being held to a different standard than the rest of an employee's work group;
- 12. Work overload, unrealistic expectations and or meaningless tasks; and/or
- 13. Encouragement of others to turn against the targeted employee.

### B. Workplace Bullying vs. Supervision

It is important to distinguish between workplace bullying behavior and appropriate workplace supervision by administration. Reasonable administrative actions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Providing performance evaluations;
- 2. Providing constructive feedback;
- 3. Scheduling ongoing meetings to address performance issues, including Directed Improvement Plans;
- 4. Setting performance goals, standards and deadlines;
- 5. Implementing organizational changes;
- 6. Counseling and/or disciplining an employee for misconduct; and/or
- 7. Investigating alleged misconduct.

Nothing in this language limits the District's responsibility and authority to evaluate employees and to make hiring, non-renewal, and termination decisions in accordance with applicable law and CCSD School Board Policy.

### C. Periodic and Ongoing Professional Development

- 1. The District, in partnership with CCEA, will develop and implement procedures for periodic and ongoing professional development on workplace bullying prevention, which includes this policy. This professional development is designed to increase understanding and awareness of the prevalence, causes, and consequences of workplace bullying. The overarching goal of this professional development is to solve issues at the building level.
- 2. The District in collaboration with CCEA, will ensure that professional development on workplace bullying prevention / conflict resolution is provided annually to all principals and building association representatives. This training will be provided at the beginning of each school year.

### 3. Procedure for Reporting Workplace Bullying/Conflict

### A. Reporting an allegation

- 1. The first step will be collaboration at the building level. The employee will provide information of the bullying / conflict to the building principal and, if appropriate, a staff representative such as a building AR. All parties will work collaboratively to resolve the issue in a timely manner.
- 2. Employees making reports of workplace bullying will discuss with all involved parties the possible options for resolving violations of this policy.
- 3. In the event a resolution to the conflict cannot be reached at the building level, the issue will be escalated to the Office of Employee Relations and, if appropriate, CCEA Leadership (e.g. CCEA President and/or his or her

assigned representative) who will work to jointly reach a solution. The solution obtained at this level is final.

- 4. The District will not respond to reports of bullying brought anonymously or by third parties not directly involved in the complaint.
- 5. In accordance with Human Resources Policy, retaliation is prohibited.

### 4. Policy Definitions

- 1. The term "teacher," "nurse," or "mental health employee" may be substituted herein for the term "employee" as the context requires.
- 2. The term "administration" and/or "administrator(s)" as used in policy will mean a collective body of persons who manage, administer, or direct the total educational enterprise of the District in whole or any part thereof. (e.g. principal, assistant principal, and/or any member of the District's Leadership Team).
- 3. The term "employee(s)" as used in this policy shall be anyone employed by the Cherry Creek School District.
- 4. A Teacher on Special Assignment or "TOSA," Coordinator of Student Achievement or "COSA" or any other non-administrator positions such as (PASS, deans, athletic directors, department heads, school counselors, instructional coaches, talent/gifted coordinators, evaluators, etc.) used in this policy are teachers who serve in quasi-administrative roles.

### 5. Additional Provisions

- 1. The terms of this policy will continue in full force and effect unless changed through the negotiations process as set forth in Policy 4135.
- 2. If any provision of this policy is found contrary to law, then such provision will be deemed null and void, but all other provisions or applications thereof will continue in full force and effect.
- 3. Upon agreement, this policy may be renegotiated in whole or in part at any time during the life of this policy.
- 4. Any additions, deletions or revisions to this policy will be distributed to those affected and will be in effect after ratification by the Association Membership and adoption of the Board.
- 5. Neither the recognized Association nor the Board can refuse to negotiate this policy at the next requested round of negotiations, following the timeline set forth in Policy 4135 if this policy is included in the request. If the issues are unresolved as a result of the negotiations using all relief provided in Policy 4135, the provisions will remain in effect (except as provided elsewhere in this section) through the remainder of the teachers' annual contract year.

Created: April 26, 2018 Adopted: August 13, 2018 Effective: July 1, 2018

### Attendance of Children, Policy 4743

Consistent with the passage of HB 94-1065, "Choice Within Public Schools," priority of placement within the District schools will be given to children of District nurses on a space available basis before other non-resident students.

Proposed: October 14, 2002 Adopted: October 14, 2002 Effective: July 1, 2002

### COVID-19 Related Matters and Working Conditions for the 2020-2021 School Year

### Memorandum of Understanding

Due to the global pandemic caused by COVID-19, the Cherry Creek Education Association (CCEA) and the Cherry Creek School District (CCSD) recognize the need to discuss how certain workplace conditions may need to be altered, sometimes significantly, to ensure the safety of staff, students, and the community while meeting the mission of educating all students in the District. Some specific provisions of the Negotiated Agreement may also be impacted. Insofar as CCEA represents its members and CCSD represents the Board of Education, both parties agree to the following:

1. The District shall communicate clear, objective measures that track the progress of COVID- 19 in Arapahoe County and the state of Colorado to determine whether and when the District will open school buildings for in-person learning or move to the remote learning plan. The District and the Association shall meet bi-weekly to discuss these measures.

2. The District shall develop and communicate parameters and/or guidelines prior to a return to inperson learning about the following: size and space of meetings, use of materials in classrooms, effective physical-distancing in both indoor and outdoor spaces, working with students one-on-one or in small groups, cleaning/sanitizing procedures, and effective teaching within the confines of new safety protocols and schedules.

3. The District shall provide a planned, gradual phase-in for the start of the school year so students, especially those at critical transitions into kindergarten, sixth grade, and ninth grade, can be acclimated to a new school and so staff can prepare for the new and changing demands of the inperson, physically-distanced environment.

4. The District, in collaboration with a sub-committee of teachers and SSPs, shall provide a detailed plan, including staffing for both online and in-person positions, that addresses how educators will meet the needs of our special populations including students on IEPs and 504s who require accommodations, English Language Learners, and Gifted/Talented students.

5. The District shall develop a plan to support our system in recognizing and meeting the unique needs of students of color.

Cherry Creek School District no. 5, Greenwood Village, CO 80111

6. The District shall mandate that all staff and students wear masks at school and work. To that end, the District has developed and the Association agrees to the following process regarding the mask mandate:

- a. Upon a first willful violation by a staff member for failure to wear the required mask, the staff member will receive a verbal warning including educational materials on the mask requirement;
- b. Upon a second willful violation by a staff member for failure to wear the required mask, the staff member will receive a written warning for insubordination;
- c. Upon a third willful violation by a staff member for failure to wear the required mask, the staff member will be placed on unpaid leave for insubordination and be subject to additional discipline up to and including termination.

7. The District is working with COVIDCheck Colorado to provide an integrated platform where employees can sign up voluntarily for a scheduled appointment every two weeks to be tested for COVID-19 at a designated site and receive rapid results. While voluntary, the District and the Association highly encourage employees to sign up for testing. These tests will be available at no cost to staff during in-person learning.

8. Multiple measures will be taken to increase physical-distancing within classrooms, schools, and other district buildings according to guidelines provided by Colorado Department of Education (CDE), Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE), Metro Partnership for Health (MDPH) and the Tri-County Health Department (TCHD). These measures will include but are not limited to the following:

- a. Building principals shall share with their Association Representative(s) a physicaldistancing plan prior to students returning to school and then work collaboratively to address any concerns or adjustments based on the needs of the changing environment.
- b. The blended-learning model (with A and B cohorts) shall be implemented in all comprehensive high schools and middle schools.
- c. Redistributing staffing and rebalancing of class sizes shall be implemented in all elementary schools.

9. The District shall provide teachers with appropriate cleaning supplies who shall be expected to engage in reasonable cleaning efforts by having time to complete tasks. If concerns arise about expectations for cleaning or the supplies provided, the building administrator can provide additional information and/or alternatives.

10. For the 2020-2021 school year only, all non-probationary teachers and those third-year probationary teachers due to receive non-probationary status retroactively who opted to be temporarily reassigned to the online school shall return to their previous site for the 2021-2022 school year. This agreement in no way waives statutory requirements in terms of mutual consent or Policy 4115.

11. If a non-probationary teacher needs to be placed at the online school and another job posting for which they are qualified becomes available, they can apply to transfer and be considered for that position during the 2020-2021 school year and may be temporarily reassigned there instead.

12. The District and the Association will convene their Educator Effectiveness teams to discuss the online evaluation process.

13. The District shall continue to pay Supplementary Pay stipends, but the stipends shall be prorated based on the length of the season/activity and will not be paid until its completion. Any year-long activities that can happen virtually will be paid out quarterly. An addendum shall be added to Policy 4142.1 that outlines the pay dates.

This MOU applies to the 2020-2021 school year and will be revisited continuously by both parties throughout the year. It shall expire June 30, 2021.

## Teachers, Nurses, Mental Health 2020-2021 Furlough Days

## Memorandum of Understanding

Due to reductions in revenue based on the 2020 Public School Finance Act, Cherry Creek School District (CCSD) will lose \$463.00 more per pupil than projected prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. This loss in Per Pupil Revenue increases the district's budget shortfall by \$25 million. As a result, the Cherry Creek Education Association (CCEA) and CCSD enter into the following memorandum of understanding:

- 1. In so far as the CCEA membership ratified the Compensation MOU on June 1, 2020, and approves participation in the Compensation sub-committee, the parties agree to this Memorandum.
- 2. All exempt employees shall be furloughed the equivalent of six (6) days during the 2020- 2021 school year, three (3) of which shall be student-contact days and three (3) of which shall be non-contact days. The first furlough day will be reduced from employees' pay on September 20, 2020. The remaining furlough days will be reduced from employees' pay on December 20, 2020.
- 3. On a districtwide furlough day, all certified employees will not report to work nor shall they participate in any work-related duties during the original contract day. Compensation for each furlough day shall be reduced by the employee's per diem rate, including part-time employees whose reduction shall be prorated according to their contracted percentage.
- 4. Because half the furlough days will be taken on non-contact days, every effort will be made by building and district administrators to provide as much teacher-directed time as possible during the school year, including but not limited to the following:
  - a. All middle and high schools shall continue to create a collaborative school plan that accounts for the 50/50 split based on the remaining non-contact days in the calendar. All elementary schools shall continue to create a collaborative school plan that accounts for the 50/50 split plus four (4) hours based on the remaining non-contact days in the calendar.
  - b. No new districtwide or schoolwide programs, with the exception of those related to

Cherry Creek School District no. 5, Greenwood Village, CO 80111

remote, blended and/or modified in-person learning, shall be introduced in the 2020-2021 school year.

- c. Staff meetings shall be reduced when possible and email communication used as a substitute when appropriate.
- d. Professional Learning Community (PLC) meetings shall be limited to no more than one (1) hour a week when teaching in-person.
- 5. CCEA has opted to reduce one (1) furlough day for bargaining unit members only (a cost of \$1.8 million) to be added back on January 5, 2021 as a non-contact day for a total of five (5) furlough days. In order to compensate for the cost of this reduction, changes to the Student Achievement Incentive Plan (Policy 4141.2.N) shall apply for the 2020-2021 school year only. Any teacher at Step 25 or higher shall receive the full SAIP stipend, provided they develop and implement an approved plan of 45 hours. All other eligible teachers on Steps 12-24 shall receive 1/3 of the SAIP stipend after developing and implementing an approved plan of 15 hours. For the 2020-2021 school year, approved SAIPs can and should be implemented virtually so cohorting of students is not violated and so plans can be implemented online or while remote.

CCEA and CCSD agree that the total cost of SAIP shall not exceed \$2 million. Both parties agree to reconvene after all SAIP requests have been submitted by September 15, 2020, to examine the costs/savings and make adjustments.

	BA+30	MA	MA+15	MA+30	MA+45	MA+60	MA+75 OR DOCTORATE
SY 2020-2021	\$1,916	\$2,473	\$2,632	\$2,792	\$2,868	\$2,943	\$2,961
Steps 25+							
	BA+30	MA	MA+15	MA+30	MA+45	MA+60	MA+75 OR DOCTORATE
SY 2020-2021	\$639	\$824	\$877	\$931	\$956	\$981	\$987
Eligible Steps 12- 19							

\*After all SAIP Part A approvals were processed, the District and the Association reconvened on October 7, 2020, to examine the cost of funding all approved plans. All eligible teachers who submitted a Part A by the September 15, 2020, deadline and are on Step 20 or higher in the 2020-2021 school year will earn the full SAIP amount listed above provided they complete the minimum 45 hours and submit Part B by the deadline.